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Nawrocki Smith Lrp
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Supervisor and Town Board of the
Town of Southampton:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Southampton (the “Town"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which
collectively comprise the Town'’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Town’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Southampton,
as of December 31, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we_have also_issued our_report dated April 24, 2012, on our

consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Southampton's financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplemental
information, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
financial statements. The supplemental information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Melville, New York . g‘ —///{ ’
April 24, 2012 W é‘/’/




TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Town of Southampton’s (the “Town”) financial
performance for the year ended December 31, 2011. This section is a summary of the Town’s financial
activities based on currently known facts, decisions and conditions. It is also based on both the Town-
wide and fund-based financial statements. The results of the current year are discussed in comparison
with the prior year, with an emphasis placed on the current year. This section is only an introduction and
should be read in conjunction with the Town’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

e The Town experienced a 2011 Total Governmental Operating Funds surplus of $2.7 million, compared
to the Total Governmental Operating Funds surplus of $5.4 million in 2010 {excluding legal settlement
proceeds of $1.4 million). Total Fund Balance for the Operating Funds at the end of 2011 was $27.7
million, a decrease of 0.2% over the prior year restated fund balance. Total Unassigned Operating
Fund Balance at the end of 2011 was $5.1 million, or 18.3% of Total Operating Fund Balance. The
General Fund represents $4.6 million, or 91.3%, of the total Unassigned Operating Fund Balance.

e All Major Operating Funds and Special Revenue Funds had a positive Fund Balance at the end of
2011. Two Special District Funds contained a Fund Balance Deficit (total deficit is $81,441 compared
to an overall surplus of $3.1 million in Special Districts).

e The Community Preservation Fund had a positive change in fund balance of $4.4 million, leading to
total fund balance at the end of 2011 of $53.1 million. The Town’s Capital Fund had a surplus of $5.4
million after the issuance of long-term serial bonds in the amount of $13.9 million, which greatly
impacted the year-end surplus and left a 2011 fund balance of approximately $5.8 million.

e Total 2011 Debt Service for the Town's Operating Funds was $8.7 million, or 9.8% of Total Operating
Revenues. The Community Preservation Fund Debt Service was $6.1 million in 2011, and it ended
the year with a Debt Service Reserve of $9.8 million.

o Total 2011 Revenues for the Town's Operating Funds was $89.3 million, of which $61.7 million or
69.0% was from Property Taxes. Comparatively, in 2010, Total Operating Revenues were $91.9
million, of which 67.8% were from Property Taxes. Year over year, Total Operating Revenues
decreased 2.7%. In 2011, Federal and State Aid comprised 50.7% of total Non-Property Tax
Operating Revenues.

e Total 2011 Expenditures for the Town's Operating Funds were $86.7 million, an increase of $1.9
million over the year 2010. Excluding Debt Service and Special Grant Funds (Housing and Urban
-Development-“HUD -and-Community-Development-Bloek-Grant-*CDBG");-Tetal-Town-Expenditures
were $112.8 million, of which $57.6 million, or 51.1%, were employee related Compensation and
Benefits. Total Employee Benefit Costs increased 16.9% between 2011 and 2010.

e The General Fund's total fund balance, as reflected in the fund financial statements, is $12,949,132,
which is a decrease of $1,056,551 or 7.5% as compared to the prior year (see pages 17 and 19). This
was related to net interfund transfer expense of $2,161,578 and a net operating gain of $999,178.

o The General Fund’s total revenues, including net financing sources, were unfavorable to the 2011
Adopted Budget by $2,495,730, or 7.1%. Total expenditures were favorable to the 2011 Adopted
Budget by $1,439,179, or 4.1%, due to lower than anticipated expenditures related to General
Governmental Support (see page 60).



The Police District Fund's fund balance, as reflected in the financial statements, was $1,242,437,
which is an improvement of $1,007,608, or 429.1%, over the prior years fund balance. The
improvement reflects the achievement of the planned deficit reduction in the 2011 Operating Budget,
as well as favorable operating revenues to the 2011 Adopted Budget of $691,737, due to higher than
anticipated departmental income and miscellaneous sources. Operating expenditures were favorable
to the 2011 Adopted Budget by $303,523, or 1.4%, due to lower than anticipated expenditures related
to public safety and employee benefits (see page 61).

The Town Outside Village Fund's tofal fund balance, as reflected in the financial statements, was
$538,903, which is a decline of $679,635, or 55.8% over the prior year's fund balance. The Town
appropriated $1,079,963 of fund balance to balance the current year's budget, however, by only using
$679,635 of fund balance, the Town Outside Village Fund actually had a positive budget variance of
$400,328 (see page 62).

The Highway Fund's total fund balance, as reflected in the financial statements, was $1,810,109,
which is an improvement of $327,358 over the prior year's fund balance. Real property taxes
increased over 2010 by $559,353, and due to vacancies in the highway department, employee
compensation and benefits were under the adopted budget by $110,340. These were offset by the
forgiveness of a preexisting interfund loan of $407,179 (see page 63).

The Town's total net position, as reflected in the Government-wide (the “Town-wide") financial
statements, increased by $3,219,601 or 0.5% (down from 2010’s increase of $13,583,829 or 2.2%).
This increase is primarily due to increases in Community Preservation and state aid revenues offset by
decreased real property taxes and local revenue sources being collected in addition to increases in
employee benefit categories. The total net position will continue to decline each year due to the
annual recognition of post-employment benefits in accordance with GASB Statement 45.

The Town's expenses for the year, as reflected in the Government-wide (the “Town-wide") financial
statements, totaled $133,612,603. Of this amount, $60,215,882 (which includes $39,647,490 of
Community Preservation revenues) was offset by program charges for services and operating and
capital grants. General revenues of $76,616,322 amounted to 56.0% of total revenues (see page 16).

The notes related to prior period adjustments resulting in resfated fund balances can be found on
page 59.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts: management'’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements and required supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the Town:

The first two statements are Government-wide financial statements (the “Town-wide") that provide
both short-term and long-term information about the Town'’s overall financial status (see pages 15 and
16).

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Town,
reporting the Town’s operations in more detail than the Government-wide (the “Town-wide”) financial
statements.

o The governmental fund financial statements tell how basic services were financed in the short-
term as well as what remains for future spending (see pages 17 - 20).

e Proprietary fund financial statements provide both shori-term and long-term information on the
Town'’s business-type activities with the primary revenue sources being charges for services (see
pages 21 - 23).

e Fiduciary fund financial statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the Town acts solely as a frustee or agent for the benefit of others (see page 24).
-4-



The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detfailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplemental
information that further explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison of certain actual
results (General Fund, Police District Fund, Town Outside Village Fund and Highway Fund) with the
Town'’s budget for the year.

Reporting the Town as a Whole

The analysis of the Town as a whole begins on page 15. One of the most important questions asked
about the Town'’s finances should be, “Is the Town as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the
current year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information
about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Town's net position and changes in them. You can think of the Town’s
net position — the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows — as one
way to measure the Town's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
Town’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will
need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Town’s property tax base
and the condition of the Town’s roads, to assess the overall health of the Town.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Town into three categories:

s Governmental activities - Most of the Town’s basic services are reported here, including police,
fire, public works, parks departments and general administration. Property taxes, franchise fees,
and State and federal grants finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities - The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The Town's waste management, golf course and beach
facilities are reported here.

e Component Unit - The component unit is a legally separate organization for which the Town is
either financially accountable, or the nature and relationship with the Town is such that exclusion
would cause the Town’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Town includes
one discretely presented component unit (Town of Southampton Housing Authority) as a separate
column on the Town-wide financial statements. Complete financial statements of the component
unit can be obtained from their administrative office (see Note 2).

Reporting the Town’s Most Significant Funds

Fund financial statements present financial information in the traditional governmental accounting format,
with-an-emphasis on-the most significant funds:—Our-analysis of the Town's major funds begins on page
17. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the Town
establishes many other funds to help it control and manage meney for particular purposes, or to show that
it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money (grants received from
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). The Town's three kinds of funds —
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary — use different accounting approaches.

e Governmental Funds - Most of the Town’'s basic services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. The governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view
of the Town’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental
fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the Town's programs. We describe the relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation following each of the
governmental fund financial statements (pages 18 and 20).



e Proprietary Funds - When the Town charges customers for the services it provides — whether to
outside customers or to other units of the Town — these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The Town's enterprise funds (a
component of proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the
Town-wide financial statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash
flows, for proprietary funds.

o Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources that are earmarked for the
benefit of other parties, and are not reflected on the Town-wide financial statements because
those funds are not available to support the Town's activities.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

Financial Highlights:

Net position

The Town’s fotal assets (including deferred outflows) on December 31, 2011 were $852.8 million, an
increase of $19.3 million over the prior year. Total liabilities (including deferred inflows) were $217.5
million, an increase of approximately $16.1 million from the prior year. The result is a net position of
$635.3 million, an increase of $3.2 million over the prior year. Of the Town’s net position, $617.6 million
were invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Restricted net position was $70.0 million and
unrestricted net position was a deficit of $(52.3) million on December 31, 2011.

e Positive working capital of $73.2 million was due to a decrease in bond anticipation notes payable of
$7.1 million, decrease in accounts payable of $2.2 million and a decrease in the amount due to the
employees’ retirement system of $3.1 million.

e Investment in capital assets of $617.6 million (compared to $595.9 million in 2010) increased primarily
due to ongoing bond principal payments, reduction of bond principal payable as a result of bond
refunding and ongoing capital projects purchases offset by depreciation charges.

e The Town’s bonded indebtedness was $138.3 million which is included in liabilities of which $60.7
million is related to purchases of land by the Community Preservation Fund. The Town also had
outstanding installment purchase debt of $13.8 which related to purchases of land by the Community
Preservation Fund.

Change in Net Position

The Town’s program revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 were $60.2 million, an increase of
$5.5 million from 2010, which is primarily related to an increase in CPF revenue collected. General
revenues decreased by $1.1 million from last year to $76.6 million primarily related to decreases in
“collectionof Tevenues-from local sources.  Total combined revenues for 2011 were $136.8 million, an"
increase of $4.4 million from 2010. Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011 were $133.6 million
reflecting an increase of $14.8 million which is primarily related to increases in the Community
Preservation Fund’s land purchases. This resulted in a change in net assets for the year ended December
31, 2011 in the amount of $3.2 million.

The Town's combined net position increased from a year ago from $632.1 million to $635.3 million. Our
analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Town'’s
governmental and business-type activities.

Reference is made to Note 18 of the financial statements with respect to certain restatements made to
prior year balances.



Table 1;

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental and Business-type Activities - Primary Government

As of December 31,

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2010 2010 2010
2011 (As Restated) 2011 {As Restated) 2011 (As Restated)
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 95075999 § 94244427 $ 1629238 $ 794795 § 96,705,237 $ 95,039,222
Capital assets 733,146,478 715,149,856 22,744,195 23,039,199 755,890,673 738,189,055
Total assets 828,222 477 809,394,283 24,373,433 23,833,994 852,595,910 833,228,277
Deferred outflows 216,424 233,433 - - 216,424 233,433
Total assets and deferred outflows $828,438,901 $809,627,716 § 24373433 §$ 23,833,994 $852,812,334 $833,461,710
Liabilities:
Current liabilities $ 22,390,540 $ 27,815955 $ 1,102,162 $ 4,751,885 $ 23492702 $ 32,567,840
Long-term liabilities 185,227,168 159,802,777 7,695,165 8,093,059 192,922,333 167,895,836
Total liabilities 207,617,708 187,618,732 8,797,327 12,844,944 216,415,035 200,463,676
Deferred inflows 1,087,594 917,708 7,227 7,449 1,104,821 925,157
Total liabilities and deferred inflows. $208,715,302 _$188,536,440 $ 8,804,554 $ 12,852,393 $217,519,856 _$201,388,833
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets $603,043,978 $581,511,256 § 14,506,695 $ 14,385,599 $617,550,673 - $595,896,855
Restricted 74,783,204 55,806,221 - - 74,783,204 55,806,221
Unrestricted (58,103,583) {16,226,201) 1,062,184 (3,403,998) (57,041,399) (19,630,199)
Total net position $619,723,508 $621,091,276 $ 15568879 $ 10,981,601 $635,292,478 $632,072,877
Table 2:
Condensed Statement of Activities and Change in Net Position
Governmental and Business-type Activities - Primary Government
For the years ended Decemeber 31,
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2010 2010 2010
2011 (As Restated) 2011 (As Restated) 2011 (As Restated)
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 8470,395 $ 7,906,365 $ 4452240 $ 4,390,685 $ 12,922,635 $ 12,297,050
Operating grants and contribitions 46,193,967 42,080,351 53,642 54,563 46,247,609 42,144,914
Capital grants and contributions 1,045,638 235,547 - - 1,045,638 235,547
Total program revenues 55,710,000 50,232,263 4,505,882 4,445,248 60,215,882 54,677,511
General revenues:
Real property taxes 61,685,290 62,263,733 1,333,287 492 017 63,018,577 62,755,750
Other real property tax items 569,203 536,037 - - 569,203 536,037
Non-property tax items 1,424,315 1,350,747 - - 1,424,315 1,350,747
Interest earnings 687,758 720,489 2,256 3,200 690,014 723,689
State aid - unrestricted 8,193,369 8,053,994 - - 8,193,369 8,053,994
Other 2,720,844 4,295,472 - - 2,720,844 4,295,472
Total general revenues 75,280,779 77,220,472 1,335,543 495,217 76,616,322 77,715,689
Total revenues 130,990,779 127,452,735 5,841,425 4,940,465 136,832,204 132,393,200
Program expenses:
General governmental support 26,940,594 25,074,740 - - 26,940,594 25,074,740
Public safety 39,135,250 31,543,786 - - 39,135,250 31,543,786
Health 2,606,820 2,471,220 - - 2,606,820 2,471,220
Transportation 25,946,066 23,815,305 - - 25,946,066 23,815,305
Economic assistance and opportunity 4,493,983 3,126,172 - - 4,493,983 3,126,172
Culture and recreation 8,779,126 7,438,142 - - 8,779,126 7,438,142
Home and community services 16,478,801 15,196,972 - - 16,478,801 15,196,972
Interest on debt 4,331,456 5,265,610 308,632 280,637 4,640,088 5,546,247
Beaches and marinas - - 1,628,477 1,591,250 1,628,477 1,591,250
Waste management - - 2,334,084 2,354,890 2,334,084 2,354,890
Golf course - - 629,314 650,647 629,314 650,647
Total expenses 128,712,096 113,931,947 4,900,507 4,877,424 133,612,603 118,809,371
Excess before interfund transfers 2,278,683 13,520,788 940,918 63,041 3,219,601 13,583,829
Interfund transfers (3,646,360) (427,733) 3,646,360 427,733 - -
Change in net position $ (1,367677) $ 13,093,055 $ 4,587278 % 490,774 $ 3,219,601 $ 13,583,829
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Governmental Activities

Revenues for the Town’s governmental activities increased by 2.8% ($3.5 million) while total expenses increased

by 13.0% ($14.8 million). The majority of the increase in revenue is due to an increase in operating grants and an
increase in real property taxes.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $128.7 million. However, as shown in the Statement of
Activities on page 16, the amount that taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through Town taxes was
only $61.7 million, because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs ($8.5

million) or by other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions
($47.2 million).

Table 3 presents the cost of the Town’s governmental activities as well as the net cost of services (total cost less
revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the Town's
taxpayers by each of these functions (see page 16).

Table 3:

Net Costs of Services
Governmental Activities
For the years ended December 31,

Total Cost Program Net (Cost)
of Services Revenues of Services
2010 2010 2010
2011 (As restated) 2011 (As restated) 2011 (As restated)

General governmental support $ 26,940,594 $ 25,074,740 $ 41,060,824 $ 35,900,998 $ 14,120,230 $ 10,826,258
Public safety 39,135,250 31,543,786 656,434 338,106 (38,478,816) (31,205,680)
Health 2,608,820 2,471,220 - - (2,606,820) (2,471,220)
Transportation 25,946,066 23,815,305 2,895,825 1,858,308 (28,050,241) (21,956,997)
Economic assistance and opportunity 4,493,983 3,126,172 414,229 1,053,827 (4,079,754) (2,072,345)
Culture and recreation 8,779,126 7,438,142 794,286 927,422 (7,984,840) (6,510,720)
Home and community services 16,478,801 15,196,972 9,888,402 10,153,602 (6,590,399) (5,043,370)
Interest on debt 4,331,456 5,265,610 - - (4,331,456) (5,265,610}

$128,712,096 $113,931,947 $ 55,710,000 $ 50,232,263 $ (73,002,096) § (63,699,684)

The overall net cost of services increased over 2010 by $9.3 million. The majority of the increase in cost of
services was due to costs related to public safety increase.

Table 4: Sources of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2011 — Governmental Activities

Operating grants and Capital grants and
contributions contributions
35.26% 0.80%

Real property taxes

/47.09%

Chargeg Ero/fe“ﬂces Other real property tax
. items

0.43%

State aid
6.25%

Non-property tax items

Interest eamings
0.53%
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Table 5: Expenses for Fiscal Year 2011 — Governmental Activities

Culture and recreation

Economic assistance |
and opportunity :

5 Interest on debt General governmental
Home and community

senices 3.27% support
12.45% \

Interfund transfers

20.36%
2.75% )

6.63% N

3.40%

Transportation
19.60%

Health
1.97%

Business-Type Activities

The Town’s total operating revenues from business-type activities increased by 18.2 percent ($0.9 million) over
2010 (as restated). Some significant year-end financial data relating to these entities are highlighted as follows:

Operating revenue in the Beaches and Marinas Fund totaled $2.0 million in 2011. Operating revenue
increased by approximately $0.2 million, and can be primarily attributable to increased beach parking fees
and planned increases in real property taxes to cover the debt services on improvements within the fund.
The fund had an increase in net position of approximately $1.2 million, due to the receipt of interfund
transfers from the General Fund of approximately $1.0 million. The transfers were made to supplement
the Beaches and Marinas Fund's operating revenues for the cost of the fund’s indebtedness associated
with maintaining its capital assets.

Operating revenue in the Waste Management Fund totaled $3.2 million in 2011. Operating revenue
increased by approximately $0.7 million, and can be primarily attributable to planned increases in real

—.property.taxes.in_order.-to-eliminate-the-fund’s_opening-fund-deficit-of$1.3_million.. The fund had-an.

increase in net position of approximately $3.4 million, thereby, eliminating the fund deficit and creating a
positive net position of approximately $2.1 million. The fund also had interfund transfers of approximately
$2.7 million that were made to supplement the Waste Management Fund's operating revenues for the
cost of the fund’s indebtedness associated with maintaining its capital assets ($2.2 million) and the
Highway Fund forgave an interfund receivable from the Waste Management Fund ($0.4 million).

The Golf Course experienced an increase in operating revenues and a decrease in operating expenses,
however, the fund still yielded a net loss of approximately $10,000. In the previous year, the fund
received an interfund transfer of $159,060 to cover its operating loss of $103,042, however, there was no
such interfund transfer for the current year. Better management of expenses eliminated the need for the
fund to receive an interfund transfer to cover operating losses.




Table 6: Sources of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2011 — Business-Type Activities

Interfund transfers

38.43% Charges for senices

46.93%

Interest earnings
0.02%

Operating grants and
Real property taxes contributions
14.05% 0.57%

Table 7: Expenses for Fiscal Year 2011 - Business-Type Activities

Beaches and marinas

Waste management 33.23%
47.63%

Golf course
12.84%

Interest on debt
6.30%
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF CERTAIN TOWN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental Funds

General Fund assets decreased by 14.8%, primarily related to a decrease in State and federal aid receivables.
Liabilities decreased by 56.6%, primarily related to a decrease of $1.0 million in the amount due to ERS and $0.4
million in accrued liabilities. Fund balance decreased by $1.1 million, or 7.5%, after a net $2.1 million transfer of
money to other funds.

The General Fund has an unassigned fund balance of $4.6 million, which represents 13.7% of annual operating
general fund expenditures, in addition to a tax stabilization reserve of $5.2 million.

The Police District Fund operated with an excess of approximately $1.0 million in 2011. Revenues and
expenditures were comparable to 2010, when there also was an excess in the Police District Fund of
approximately $1.1 million.

The Capital Projects Fund had an increase in fund balance of $5.4 million. This is due to the timing of when
revenues are recorded from the issuance of long-term debt, and when the expenditures for the related projects are
incurred. Proceeds from the issuance of debt were $13,862,000 in 2011.

In the Community Preservation Fund, the fund balance increased approximately $4.5 million, mostly related to the
increase in transfer tax receipts. Overall, expenditures increased by $15.5 million from 2010, mostly related to an
increase in land purchases of $17.4 million and a decrease in debt service payments of $1.8 million.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2011, the Town had $755.9 million invested in a broad range of capital assets, including beaches,
land, police equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, bridges-and water infrastructure (See Table 9). Since the
inception of the Community Preservation Fund in 1999, the Town of Southampton has acquired preserved land
valued at approximately $413.4 million of the Town’s total $517.2 million of land. The details of capital assets are
shown in Note 7 1o the financial statements.

Table 8: Net investment in Capital Assets for Fiscal Year 2011

Infrastructure
23.82%

Machinery and \
equipment y

1:23%

Improvements other /

than buildings
2.04%

Land
68.43%
Buildings
4.48%
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Table 9:
Capital Assets
As of December 31,

2010
Governmental Activities: 201 (As restated)

Land $ 505,894,209 $ 480,217,567
Buildings 39,497,877 37,631,530
Improvements other than buildings 15,132,781 14,509,678
Machinery and equipment 27,250,824 25,262,931

Infrastructure -
Bridges 1,296,471 1,216,896
Landfill 9,412,515 9,412,515
Roads, curbs and sidewalks 349,277,957 345,313,282
Lighting system 1,349,791 1,349,791
Bulkheads, piers and boardwalks 10,150,580 9,354,536
Water and sewer mains 11,407,906 10,249,217
Total capital assets 970,670,911 934,517,943
Less accumulated depreciation 237,524,433 219,368,087
Total net capital assets $ 733,146,478 $ 715,149,856

Business-type Activities:

Land $ 11,287,063 3 11,287,083
Buildings 4,422 433 4,422 433
Improvements other than buildings 8,720,332 8,710,155
Machinery and equipment 2,812,424 2,394,416
Total capital assets 27,242,252 26,814,067
Less accumulated depreciation 4,498,057 3,774,868
Total net capital assets 3 22,744,195 3 23,039,199

The Town's fiscal year 2011 capital budget includes the continuation of funding for infrastructure improvements.
Over half the Town's $18.9 million capital spending plan in 2011, $7.6 million was dedicated to the reconstruction
of roads, bridges, and drainage improvement projects. The Town also continued several projects to improve the
Town’s buildings and parks initiated_projects_aimed at enhancing efficiency through technology improvements._in_

software and hardware.

Debt Administration

The Town's debt management policy limits the Town'’s debt service funded by taxpayers to not more than 15% of
operating expenditures, excluding the Community Preservation Fund. For 2011, the Town'’s total debt service was
approximately $14.8 million, of which $6.1 million was paid by the Community Preservation Fund, resulting in
taxpayer supported debt service of approximately $8.7 million. Debt service in 2011, excluding CPF, was 10.1%
of operating expenditures.

The Town of Southampton current outstanding bonded indebtedness was $138.3 million at year-end 2011, of
which $60.7 million was related to the Community Preservation Fund land purchases, $43.6 million for various
General Fund capital assets, $28.7 million related to highway improvements and $5.3 million for the Hampton
Bays Water District.

-12-



There was one serial bond issuance during 2011, an original issuance of approximately $14.2 million. There was
one installment purchase debt obligation issuance during 2011, an original issuance of approximately $19.6
million. As of December 31, 2011, there were no short-term bond anticipation notes outstanding.

The Town has accrued a $38.0 million obligation for other post-employment benefits in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 45 on the Town-wide financial statements. Note 9 to the financial statements shows the details of
the Town's long-term liabilities.

Union Contracts

The Town provides services through approximately 16 elected officials, 470 full time employees and
approximately 135 part time employees. The Town also employs approximately 300 part time seasonal
employees. The Town also has 44 appointed Board members. The Civil Service Employee Association (the
CSEA) represents approximately 285 employees under a contract which expires on December 31, 2013. The
Police Benevolent Association (the PBA) represents approximately 73 empioyees under a contract which
expires on December 31, 2012. The Superior Officers Association (the SOA) represents approximately 16
employees under a contract which expires on December 31, 2013. The Chief of Police is a non-union
employee.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

Budget Procedures

The Town's elected officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-year 2011 budget, tax rates and fees
to be charged for the business-type activities. The 2011 Adopted Operating Budget was primarily structurally
balanced and the only funds with appropriated fund balance were the Town Outside Village Fund ($1,079,963)
and Water Districts Fund ($150,000). in 2003, the Town Board mandated a 5% cap on any increases in the Town
tax rate in any given year. Beginning in 2012, New York State mandated a 2% cap on any increases in the Town
tax rate in any given year.

In the midst of one of the worst economic recessions in decades affecting our taxpayers, a more cost efficient
budget was adopted for 2011, which sought to minimize the property tax increases. The Town Board appropriated
approximately $1.1 million to balance the 2011 Adopted Operating Budget. The 2012 Operating Budget was
projected to meet the proposed 2% Tax Levy cap proposed by the New York State Governor, and appropriated
approximately $0.7 million to balance the 2012 Adopted Operating Budget.

See page 3 for discussion regarding significant budget variances and see pages 60 through 63 for budget versus
actual comparisons.

Tax Collection

Property taxes for the Town, together with the County, fire and school district taxes are collected by the Town Tax
Receiver on a single tax bill. The taxes become a lien on December 1, and are payable in two equal payments
without penalty by January 10 and May 31, respectively. Penalties on unpaid taxes are 1% per month from the
day such taxes are due and payable and 10% after May 31.

As of Total Tax To Town To County Uncollected
May 31, Levy Supervisor Treasurer Returned

2011 $ 313,966,597 $ 297,658,185 $ 16,308,412 $ 16,347,606
2010 303,357,256 286,374,105 16,983,151 15,576,863
2009 285,515,366 269,892,478 15,622,888 13,851,451
2008 263,554,592 248,575,719 14,978,873 11,749,256
2007 247,855,948 234,400,547 13,455,401 10,285,056
2006 236,597,356 225,544,264 11,053,092 9,471,212

13-



The Town Receiver distributes the collected money to the Town, fire and school districts prior to distributing the
balance collected to the County. Uncollected amounts are not segregated by the Receiver and any deficiency in
tax collection is the County’s liability. The Town is thereby assured of full tax collection.

Business-Type Activities

As for the Town's business-type activities, it is expected that the 2012 results will continue to improve based on
these rate decisions:

¢ The Beach and Marinas Enterprise Fund performed better than 2010, with property taxes continuing to be
collected and allocated to pay for debt service and higher than anticipated beach parking receipts. It is
expected that property taxes will continue to be required to further subsidize the debt service payments.

e The Waste Management Enterprise Fund eliminated its net deficit of $1.3 million at the end of 2011, and
ended up with a net position of $2.1 million. The fund was reimbursed for its historical asset costs which
resulted in the eradication of the deficit. Also, the 2012 budget continued the practice of raising property
taxes to pay for the debt service, and to charge other Town tax districts for services.

e As of December 31, 2011 the Poxabogue Golf Course was jointly owned with the Town of East
Hampton. Revenues increased in 2011 due to the opening of a new restaurant. During 2012, the
Town Board approved the Town’s purchase of the portion of the Golf Course that was owned by the
Town of East Hampton for approximately $2.2 million.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Town Comptroller's
Office at Town of Southampton, 116 Hampton Road, Southampton, NY 11968 (631) 283-6000.

-14-



ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
State and federal aid receivables
Due from fiduciary funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Inventory of materials and supplies
Other assets

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total capital assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Deferred bond issue charges

Total deferred outflows
Total assets and deferred outflows

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable

Due to employees' retirement system

Due to fiduciary funds
Due to other governments

Non-current liabilities due within one year:

General obligation bonds payable

Special assessment bonds with
governmental commitment

Bond issue premium

Compensated absences

Instaliment purchase debt payable

Estimated liability for landfill closure

and post-closure care costs
Mortgages payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
General obligation bonds payable
Special assessment bonds with

governmental commitment
Bond issue premium
Compensated absences
Instailment purchase debt payable
_Judgments and claims_payable

TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Primary Government

Other post-employment benefits

Due to employees' retirement system
Estimated liability for landfill closure

and post-closure care costs
Mortgages payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS

Deferred rents and other inflows
Deferred fees for services
Deferred property taxes

Total deferred inflows

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
$ 8,389,709 $ 804,654 9,194,363 $ 127,936
71,470,936 - 71,470,936 235,640
3,131,537 37,220 3,168,757 85,778
2,380,006 - 2,390,006 -
3,441,325 699,883 4,141,208 -
3,404,483 - 3,404,483 -
2,848,003 67,424 2,915,427 28,052
- 20,057 - 20,057 -
- - - 17,313
95,075,999 1,629,238 96,705,237 494,719
505,894,209 11,287,063 517,181,272 717,573
227,252,269 11,457,132 238,709,401 2,434,423
733,146,478 22,744,195 755,890,673 3,151,996
828,222,477 24,373,433 852,595,910 3,646,715
216,424 - 216,424 23,077
216,424 - 216,424 23,077
$ 828,438,901 3 24,373,433 852,812,334 $ 3,669,792
$ 1,840,506 $ 86,705 1,927,211 $ 32,675
386,768 - 386,768 15,553
1,425,813 76,303 1,602,116 -
117,381 - 117,381 -
3,590,752 54,686 3,645,438 -
57,346 228,168 285,514 -
11,035,880 656,300 11,692,180 6,500
32,820 - 32,820 -
86,509 - 86,509 -
88,179 - 88,179 -
3,500,000 - 3,500,000 -
228,586 - 228,586 -
- - - 39,871
22,390,540 1,102,162 23,492,702 94,599
118,864,589 7,581,200 126,445,788 103,500
169,211 - 169,211 -
632,049 - 632,049 -
10,634,269 113,965 10,748,234 -
10,072,700 - 10,072,700 -
1,700,000 = 1,700,000 -
38,001,772 - 38,001,772 -
1,267,836 - 1,267,836 -
3,884,742 - 3,884,742 -

- - - 2,887,821
185,227,168 7,695,165 192,922,333 2,991,321
207,617,708 8,797,327 216,415,035 3,085,920

- - - 15,573

- 7,227 7.227 -

1,097,594 - 1,097,594 -
1,087,594 7,227 1,104,821 15,573
603,043,978 14,506,695 617,550,673 227,636
74,783,204 - 74,783,204 234,493
(58,103,583) 1,062,184 (57,041,399) 106,170
619,723,598 15,568,879 635,292,478 568,299
$ 828,438,901 $ 24,373,433 862,812,334 $ 3,669,792

integral part of this statement.
15-
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2011

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 86,650,816
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different due to the following:

Capital assets less accumulated depreciation are included in the Statement of Net Position:
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable $ 505,894,209
Depreciable 464,776,702
Accumulated depreciation (237,524 ,433) 733,146,478

Long-term liabilities applicable to the Town's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported in the governmental fund
financial statements. However, these liabilities are included in the Statement of Net Position:

General obligation bonds payable, inclusive of premiums (130,619,027)

Special assessment bonds with governmental commitment (202,031)

Installment purchase debt payable (13,572,700)

Due to Employees' Retirement System (1,385,217)

Compensated absences (10,722,448)

Judgments and claims payable (1,700,000)

Other post-employment benefits (38,001,772)

Estimated liability for landfill closure and post-closure care costs (4,113,328)  (200,316,523)
Deferred charges included in the Statement of Net Position. 216,424

Revenue that was not accrued on the governmental fund financial statements because it
does not meet the availability criteria under the modified accrual basis of accounting is
included in the Statement of Net Position. 1,452,217

Interest payable applicable to the Town's governmental activities are not due and payable
in the current period and accordingly are not reported in the governmental fund financial
statements. However, these liabilities are included in the Statement of Net Position. (1,425,813)

Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 619,723,599

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an
integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Net change in fund balance - governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The
amount by which capital outlay exceeds depreciation in the current period is:
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

Other assets not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the Statement of Net Position.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position.

Issuance of bonds

Premiums on issuance of bond

Repayment of bond principal

Repayment of special assessment bonds

Issuance of installment purchase debt

Repayment of installment purchase debt

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:

Other post-employment benefits

Employees' retirement system

Compensated absences

Judgments and claims payable

Estimated liability for landfill closure and post-closure care costs

Accrued interest costs

Net change in net position - governmental activities

$ 9,830,258
$ 36,152,968
(18,156,346) 17,996,622
210,359
(13,862,000)
86,509
10,361,293
44,607
(19,572,700)
6,000,000 (16,942,291)
(10,259,707)
(1,220,565)
(736,537)
108,500
(297,338)
(56,978) (12,462,625)
8 (1.367677)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an
integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

NON-MAJOR
BUSINESS-TYPE
MAJOR BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
Beaches and Waste Golf Total
Marinas Management Course Proprietary Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 91,986 $ 253,857 458,811 $ 804,654
Accounts receivable, net - 35,993 1,227 37,220
Due from fiduciary funds 76,196 623,687 - 699,883
Prepaid expenses 20,151 47,273 - 67,424
Inventory of materials and supplies - 20,057 - 20,057
Total current assets 188,333 980,867 460,038 1,629,238
Non-current assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets 8,024,788 169,100 3,093,174 11,287,063
Depreciable capital assets, net of depreciation 5,672,428 5,460,534 424,170 11,457,132
Total non-current assets 13,597,217 5,629,634 3,517,344 22,744,195
Total assets $ 13,785,550 $ 6,610,501 3,977,382 $ 24,373,433
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 22,235 $ 60,768 3,702 $ 86,705
Accrued interest payable 33,498 42 805 - 76,303
Bond anticipation notes payable - - - -
Due to employees’ retirement system - - - -
Due to fiduciary funds 54,686 - - 54,686
Due to other governments - - 228,168 228,168
Non-current liabilities due within one year -
General obligation bonds payable 393,600 262,700 - 656,300
Total current liabilities 504,019 366,273 231,870 1,102,162
Non-current liabilities:
General obligation bonds payable 3,480,000 4,101,200 - 7,581,200
Compensated absences 27,229 86,736 - 113,965
Total non-current liabilities 3,507,229 4,187,936 - 7,695,165
Total liabilities 4,011,248 4,554,209 231,870 8,797,327
Deferred Inflows
Deferred fees for services 2,802 4,425 - 7,227
Total deferred inflows 2,802 4,425 - 7,227
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 9,723,617 1,265,734 3,617,344 14,506,695
Unrestricted 47,883 786,133 228,168 1,062,184
Total net position 9,771,500 2,051,867 3,745,512 15,568,879
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 3 13,785,550 $ 6,610,501 3,977,382 $ 24,373,433

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an

integral part of this statement.
21-



-ecn

"Juswiajels siy) jo ued eibajul
UE ale sjuaLWale)s |ejoueUl o} ssjou BuiAuedwioooe oyl

6/8'896'G1 ¢ zis'svl'e $ 198°180'2 $ 00G'14L'6
109'186'01 1ze'ssl'e (ovv'00E'L) 92.'925'8
8.2'185'y (608'6) €le'zse'e [ ZVR 27 A
¥86'BEE'E 282 €8€'/05'2 6LEZER
(ze9'g0¢g) - (Z19'%¥1) {0z0'v91)
962'2 z8¢2 ¥86 06¢'L
(ooo0'0l) - - (000'01)
09€'969'c - Liv'LGo' 6¥6'700'L
v62'L¥e L (160°01) 0£6'7¥8 Serely
G/8°166'Y ¥1£629 ¥80'VEEZ 1.7'929")
€9€°2€9 - Ge8'0vy 825°161
681'ce. €16'LL Lr2'8Ly 6/6'982
LPE'LLY LE'LLY - -
800'G.¥'L - 800'G/¥'L -
v.6'6YL'L - - ¥16'67L'L
691 '6£8'G £22'619 ¥10'6/1'€ ZE6'0¥0'
Z¥o'es 8/G 8GELY 90.'s
ove'esy'y S¥9'81L9 gev'Lel'e 091'20L')
18Z'€ee'] $ - $ 122'000'} $ 990'cee
spund Aiejaudold asinon Juswabeuepy Seulep
1ejol oo ajIsem pue ssyoeag
S3ILIAILOY SAILIALLOY SdAL-SSIANISNG HOrvIN
IdAL-SSIANISNG
HOrYIW-NON

1102 "L€ ¥39IN303d A3ANT ¥v3IA IHL ¥O4

SANNd AYV.L3RIdO¥™d

Jeak jo pus ‘uopysod Jau [BjoL

(g1 @I0N 29s) pajeisal se
‘1eak Jo Buuuibaqg ‘uonisod jau [B10

uopyisod j8u u) sbueyn

(sesuadxa) sanuanal Bunelado-uou |Bjo |

199p uo Jsalalu|
aLoou| Jsaleiu)
1RO SIBJSUB) punuaiuj
U] sIajsuel) punyaju|
((sasuadxa) sanuaaal Bunesado-uoN

(ssoj) awoou; Bupesado
sasuadxa Hujjesado jejo

sjyauaq sakojdwg

uonerpaldeq

9SIN0Y Jj09)

juswsbeuew s)sepn

SeulewW pue sayoeayg
:sasuadxs Bupesad

sanuaaal Bunesado |ejol

JBYio

saoin8s 10y sabieyn

saxe} Ayadoid [eay
:sanuaaal Bupesadp

NOILISOd L3N NI SIONVHO ANY SASNAJdX3 'SINNIAIY 40 LNIINS
NOLdIVHLNOS 40 NMOL

LV1S



lle
‘JusWwaless siyy jo yved |eibajul
ue ale sjuawaje)s |ejoueuly oy sajou BuiAuedwoosoe sl

sajyaioe Bunesado Agq pasn yseo jeN

$30Uasqe pajesuadwo)

sanuaaal pausjad

sjuatiwianoh Jaujo o3 ang

spunj Azeonpy o ang

waishs uawadas seafopdwsa oy ang

cel| pantook pue ajqeAed sjunoooy

sasuadxs predaidq

spuny Aejonpy wolj angg

3|geAladal SUNCOOY

asuadxa uopeaidag
sapaoe Bupesado Aq pasn used
18U 0} (ss0|) awoou; Bujelado sjouooal 0} sjUBWsnipY
| (ss0)) awoou; Bupelado

"wu_h_>_h0< ONILYNIJO A8 (@3sn) a3aInodd

HSVD L3N 01 (SSOT) ANOONI ONILYHIJO S0 NOLLYITIONODHY

(Zog vEr'2) § (86259 g (ceZziel) §  (y0Zs9) $
(65'6€) - (15.'8€) (eve)

(zz2) - 209 (628)

(gee'sy) (see'sh) - -

(gzg'oe'e) - (809't1€'2) (L18'%2L'L)

(r89'16) - (£19'g8) (£90'9€)

(120'e2) (519'22) (009'1) oLt

(62L'18) - (996'28) (e9s'8L)

(£88'669) - (£89'€29) (981'92)

(e66'2L) (L22'y) (zLL'r1) -

68L'€2L €L6'LL LvZ'sly 5.6'082

[ A A $  (ie0'0l) $ 0E6'vY8 $ gsy'ely $
¥59'708 $ L1886y [ 158'e62 $ 986'1L6 §
228'YEL 128'€2S - S66°012

2£8'69 (910'59) 158'es2 (600'6L1)

9522 z82 v85 06¢€°l

9522 z8z ¥8S 06€'}

8€1°205°C - 96Y'590°C Zha'oey

09E'9V9'E - 1159z 676 766
(Le6'862) - (Log'8EL) (oev'tol)
(001 've9) - (oot'vs2) (0oL'sL€)
(000'08) - - (0o0'08)

000'862 - 000'522 000'€L
(g81'sey) - (s00'8L¥) (L21'o1)
(295'vev'2) (862'59) (eezzigl) (1¥0°25G)
{(ov's8l'y) (see’sr) (g62'5£6'2) (G AD)
(1¥9'c9L) - (g0z'ses) (set'gee)
(egi'Lie'e) (956'cE0) (rL5'608'1) (e65°291°1)

Zro'es 8.5 85€e' LY Q0L's

6L0'6EF'Y 8Ly'LLe 0lz'ozl'e Lee'toL'L

182'cee’L $ - $ 12z'000't $ 990'ege $
spung Aiejendold RG] justuabeuepy seupep

[eloL Hoo alsep pue sayoeag
SIILIAILOY SAILIALLOY ZdAL-SSINISNE HOrvIN
3dAL-SSANISNE
HOrvW-NON

1102 "1 € ¥A9INIO30 Q3ANT dVIA JHL ¥0d
SANNH AMVYLIIFdOdd
SMOTd HSVD JO INJW3LVLS
NOLdAVHLINOS 4O NMOL

Jeak o pua ‘sjusjeninba ysed pue ysesd

Jeak jo Bu

1Baq *syusieainbe yseo pue ysed
sjuaieainba Yseo pue Yses Ul (ssealosp) aseasou] JoN
sanianoe Bunsaau; Ag pepinosd yseo JaN

panaoas sBujules pue jsalaiu|
‘SHILIALLOY ONILSIANI NOYd SMOTd HSYD

sa|jialoe Butoueul Aq papiacid yseo jeN

JBJSUBL pUNUBU|
Ja3p jendens uo pled isals|
1q9p jendeo uo pied [edpuld
ajou uojjediopue puoq uo pled |ediould
pUO JO SDUENSS| WOI SPI3d0Id
sjasse [eyden jo aseyoing
'SHILIANLOY ONIONVNIL INOHd SMOTd HSYD

safiajoe Bupelado Ag pash yseo jaN

sjuswAed yseo Buyesado Jauio

sasuadxs pajejal pue saouss Joj saakojdwa o) sjuswied ysen

$80)A19S; 10 spoob 0 sialiddns Jayio o} siuswied ysen
:sasuadxa Joj sjuaLiAed
s)djeoal ysea Gupelado a0
sJawoysno wol sydieoal ysen
saxe)} Auadoud [eay
:pa}0aj|02 anUIASY
‘STLLIALLOY SNILYYIJO WOYd SMOTd HSYD




TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash _ $ 67,364,377
Accounts receivable, net 74,707
Due from proprietary funds 54,686
Due from governmental funds 3,590,752
Service award program assets 1,368,806
Total assets 3 72,453,328
LIABILITIES

Due to proprietary funds $ 699,883
Due to governmental funds 3,441,325
Due to school districts 32,597,997
Due to Law Enforcement Services 22,603
Due to Justices 180,482
Bail liability 421,189
Service award program liabilities 1,368,806
Other agency liabilities 33,721,043
Total liabilities $ 72,453,328

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an
integral part of this statement.
-24.-



TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

BACKGROUND

The Town of Southampton (the “Town”), was established in 1801 and is governed by Town Law and other
general laws of the State of New York and various local laws. The Town Board is the legislative body
responsible for overall operations. The Town Board consists of the Supervisor who is elected for a term of two
years and four council members who are elected for terms of four years. The Town Board appoints the Town
Attorney, Comptroller and the Commissioner of Public Works whose terms are fixed by Town Law. The Town
Clerk, the Superintendent of Highways and Receiver of Taxes are elected and serve for four years. The Town
Board appoints various department heads.

The Town provides a full range of municipal services, including police and justice court, home and community
services, public works and road maintenance, recreation and parks, and general and administrative services.

The accompanying financial statements include all funds of the Town for which the elected officials exercise
oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility is determined on the basis of financial interdependency,
selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and
accountability for fiscal matters. All such entities of the Town have been included in this report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Southampton have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the Town accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting entity

The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government, which is the Town of Southampton; (b)
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and (c) other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth in GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the Town of Southampton reporting entity is based on
-several.criteria set forth in. GASB_Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended,.including
legal standing, dependency and financial accountability. Based on the application of these criteria, a
summary of certain entities considered in determining the Town of Southampton’s reporting entity is
discussed below.

The Trustees of the Freeholders and Commonalty of the Town of Southampton (the “Trustees”) are
independently elected and are responsible for the receipt, maintenance and safety of legally specified
property. Operations are supported by user fee revenues established by the Trustees and derived from the
issuance of building, mooring and boat ramp permits, as well as budgeted appropriations from the Town.
The Town approves the hiring of employees and records the compensation of most employees, as well as all
of the capital projects of the Trustees on the books of the Town. The Trustees is accounted for as a blended
component unit of the Town and is reported as a special revenue fund in the non-major governmentai funds.
Complete financial statements of the Trustees can be obtained from their administrative office: The Trustees
of the Freeholders and Commonalty of the Town of Southampton, 116 Hampton Road, Southampton, N.Y.
11968.

-25-



The Town of Southampton Housing Authority (the “Authority”) provides housing for low income residents of
the Town of Southampton. The Authority is governed by its Board of Directors, which is comprised of five
members appointed by the Town of Southampton. Long-term debt that is backed by the full faith and credit
of the Town, and other fiscal matters result in a fiscal interdependency with the Town. Accordingly, the
Authority has been determined to be a component unit of the Town and is presented discretely in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the primary
government. Complete financial statements of the Authority can be obtained from their administrative
offices: Town of Southampton Housing Authority, 57 Springville Road, Hampton Bays, NY 11946.

Excluded from the reporting entity

Within the geographic boundaries of the Town are 7 incorporated villages, 13 school districts and 9 fire
districts. These entities are excluded from the Town's financial statements because their operations are
controlled by officials elected by their respective constituencies and the Town has no fiscal responsibilities to
them and cannot influence their operations.

The Town does not exercise oversight responsibility over these entities and their financial statements are not
part of the Town’s combined financial statements.

. Undivided interest

An *undivided interest” (also known as a joint operation) is an arrangement that resembles a joint venture
but no entity or organization is created by the participants. An undivided interest is an ownership
arrangement in which two or more parties own property in which title is held individually to the extent of
each party’s interest. Implied in that definition is that each participant is also liable for specific,
identifiable obligations (if any) of the operation. Because an undivided interest is not a legal entity,
borrowing to finance its operations often is done individually by each participant. The Town participates in
the following undivided interest:

The Town of Southampton and the Town of East Hampton entered into an inter-municipal
agreement to purchase and operate a public golf course, driving range, and related facilities, known
as the Poxabogue Golf Course. The Towns share equal and undivided ownership of the Golf
Course and share equally all profits or losses of operating and maintaining the Golf Course. The
Poxabogue Golf Course is presented as a non-major fund in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Complete financial statements for the Town of East Hampton can be obtained from the
Town of East Hampton, 159 Pantigo Road, East Hampton, NY 11937.

. Basis of presentation

The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the Town's major funds).

1. Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) display information about the primary government and its component units. These
statements include the financial activities of the overall government except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations of internal activity have been made in these statements. The primary government is
reported separately from the legally separate component unit for which the primary government is
financially accountable. All of the activities of the Town as primary government are governmental
activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the Town's governmental activities are presented
on a consolidated basis and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The
Town's net position is reported in three parts - net investment in capital assets, restricted and
unrestricted.
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The government-wide Statement of Aciivities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
Town's functional categories (public safety, transportation, home and community services, etc.),
which are otherwise supported by general government revenues ({property taxes, certain
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces
gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues to produce the net cost of each
program. Program revenues include (a) charges for services and (b) operating and capital grants
and contributions that are directly associated with the function. Operating grants include operating-
specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects
capital-specific grants. The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenues
(property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Eliminations have been made to prevent distortion of the direct costs and
program revenues reported.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity and the change in
the Town'’s net position resulting from the current year's activities.

Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements are similar to the financial statements presented in the previous model.
The emphasis is on the major funds in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds are summarized
into a single column.

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues, and expenditures, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance
with special regulations, restrictions or limitations. The various funds are presented by type in the fund
financial statements. Accordingly, the Town maintains the following fund types:

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are
financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources and the related liabilities
are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus of the governmental funds is
upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position. Governmental funds are
further classified as major or non-major funds.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: is the principal operating fund of the Town. This fund is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Police District Fund: is used to account for financial resources for police purposes.

Town Qutside Village Fund: is used for revenues and expenditures for certain services provided to
the area of the Town located outside of the Incorporated Villages.

Highway Fund: is used to account for revenues and expenditures for highway purposes.

Public Safety Communications: is used to account for financial resources for the operation of the E-911
communication facility.

Capital Projects Fund: is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.

Community Preservation Fund: is used to account for financial resources for land acquisition and
preservation purposes (current legislation provides for this fund through the 2030 fiscal year).
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Additionally, the Town reports the following non-major funds:

Special Revenue Funds: are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Special
Revenue Funds include the following:

Special Grant Fund: is used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to federal aid for
the Community Development Block Grant Program and the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Program.

Special Fund: is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Trustees of the Freeholders and Commonalty: is used to account for financial resources for the
preservation and protection of the waterways.

Special District Funds: are used to account for taxes or other revenues, which are raised or received to
provide special services to areas that encompass less than the whole Town. The Special District Funds
consist of a number of separate districts, which are administered by the Town Board as follows:

Fire Protection Districts:

North End Quogue Noyac
Baypoint '
Lighting Districts:
Eastport Flanders
Westhampton Quogue
East Quogue Hampton Bays
Riverside Bridgehampton
Water Mill
Public Parking Districts:
Hampton Bays Bridgehampton
Water Districts:
Flanders Hampton Bays
Ambulance Districts:
Westhampton Northampton
Hampton Bays Southampton

Coastal Erosion
Parks Districts

3. Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund

and the non-major fund.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included
on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.
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Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Beaches and
Marinas, Waste Management and Golf Course are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available for use, it is the Town'’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as
they are needed.

The Town applies all provisions of the Accounting Standards Codification of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board and interpretations except those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements
to its business-type activities.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds: used to account for the following operations:

Beaches and Marinas: used to account for operations related to the Town's beaches and
marinas. :

Waste Management: used to account for operations related to the Town'’s refuse.

Additionally, the Town reports the following non-major proprietary fund:
Golf Course: used to account for operations related to Poxabogue Golf Course.

Fiduciary Funds:

The fiduciary funds are used to account for the assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity or as
agency for individuals, private organizations and their governments. These activities are not included in
the government-wide financial statements, because their resources do not belong to the Town, and are
not available to be used.

The Town reports the following fiduciary funds:

Agency Fund: is for money (and/or property) received and held in the capacity of trustee, custodian or
agent. The Town’s fiduciary funds include agency funds as follows:

Town Agency Fund: accounts for consolidated payroll, amounts due to/from other governments,
-service-award-programs-and-other-agency-liabilities.

Town Receiver of Taxes Agency Fund: accounts for amounts due to other governments for general
and school taxes collected.

Town Clerk Agency Fund: accounts for amounts due to other governments for license and permit
fees.

Justice Court Agency Fund: accounts for amounts due to other governments and bail liability.
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E. Measurement focus and basis of accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured whereas the basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

In the government-wide financial statements, governmental activities are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds use a current financial resources measurement focus
and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (measurable and available to finance
current operations). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available”
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after the year end.

Revenues susceptible to accrual include Suffolk County local assistance at year end on behalf of the Town,
franchise fees, charges for services, intergovernmental revenues and operating transfers. Permits, fees, and
other similar revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until they
are received in cash. In those instances where expenditures are the prime factor in determining eligibility for
State and federal grants, revenues are recognized when the expenditure is incurred. In the Capital Projects
Fund, long-term debt is recognized as revenue upon receipt of the proceeds. Expenditures are recorded on
the accrual basis except that (a) expenditures for prepaid expenses are recognized when incurred, (b)
principal and interest on indebtedness are recognized as expenditures when due and (c) compensated
absences, such as vacation and sick leave, which vest or accumulate, are charged as expenditures when
paid.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments are recorded for
budgetary control purposes in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the
governmental funds. Appropriations for all governmental funds except the Capital Projects Fund lapse at
year-end. However, encumbrances reserved against fund balances are re-appropriated in the ensuing year.
Encumbrances are reported as assigned fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities. Expenditures for such commitments are recorded in the period in which the liability is incurred.

F. Property taxes

In Suffolk County (“County”), the assessment and lien of real property for taxation is done by the County
Department of Assessment. The County assessment rolls are used for the levy of real property taxes by the
Town and the school districts, as well as by the County and by special districts of the County and the Town.

The Town of Southampton Receiver of Taxes (‘Receiver”) collects all real property taxes for the Town,
Suffolk County, Town special districts and school districts located within the Town of Southampton as a
single bill. Town and County taxes are levied on December 1%, and are due in two equal installments,
payable without penalty on January 10" and May 31% respectively; after which taxes are payable to the
County Treasurer. Penalties are imposed thereafter at the rate of 1% per month from January 10™ until May
31", The Receiver collects all taxes based on this single bill and distributes the proceeds to the Town
Supervisor prior to distributing the remaining taxes collected to the County. Responsibility for the collection
of unpaid taxes rests with the County and, accordingly, the Town is assured 100% collection of real property
taxes.
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G.

Interfund fransactions

Interfund transactions have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. In the fund
financial statements, interfund transactions include:

1. Interfund revenues

Interfund revenues represent amounts charged for services or facilities provided by one fund to another
fund. The amounts paid by the fund receiving the benefits of the service or facilities are reflected as an
expenditure of the fund receiving the service.

2. Transfers

Interfund transfers represent payments to/from other funds for reimbursement of costs paid by one fund
for another fund or funding for capital projects.

H. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are made in a variety of areas,
including computation of encumbrances, compensated absences, potential contingent liabilities and
useful lives of long-lived assets.

. Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Cash consists of funds deposited in demand accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with
maturities of less than three months from the date acquired by the Town.
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments with a
maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local government investment pools to be cash
equivalents.

J.  Receivables
Receivables include amounts due from federal, State and other governments or entities for services
provided by the Town. Receivables are recorded and revenues are recognized as earned or as specific
program expenditures are incurred. '

K. Inventory - materials and supplies
Inventory in the proprietary funds is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.

L. Prepaid expenses
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in the government-wide financial statements. Prepaid expenses in the Statement of Net
Position represent amounts paid in advance for employee retirement benefits and insurance.

M. Restricted assets

Certain assets are classified as restricted assets because their use is restricted by contractual
agreements and regulations.
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N.

Capital assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $10,000 or more are reported at historical
cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 25-50 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-30 years
Infrastructure -
Bridges 50 years
Landfill 30 years
Roads, curbs and sidewalks 20-30 years
Lighting system 15 years
Bulkheads, piers and boardwalks 10-30 years
Water and sewer mains 25 years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for
as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.

Premiums on debt issuance

Premiums related to the issuance of long-term debt are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
issue and are presented as part of general obligation bonds payable. Premiums considered to be immaterial
are not amortized. In the fund financial statements, premiums are recognized during the current period as
other financing sources.

Deferred charges (outflows)

Discounts and expenses related to the issuance of long-term debt and any loss on the early retirement of
refunded debt are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the later issue, and are presented net of
accumulated amortization, in the government-wide financial statements. Bond issuance costs considered to
be immaterial are not amortized. In the fund financial statements, bond issuance costs are recognized
during the current period as expenditures.

Deferred inflows

Deferred inflows are reported when potential revenues do not meet both the measurable and available
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred inflows also arise when the Town receives
resources before it has legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both recognition criteria are met, or when the

Town has legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred inflows is removed and revenues are
recorded.

Interfund receivables and payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions, as well as short-term
interfund loans are classified as “due to and from other funds”. Long-term interfund loans (non-current
portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds”. Interfund receivables and payables between
funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

Long-term obligations

The liabilities for long-term obligations consisting of general obligation bonds payable, special assessment
bonds payable, installment purchase debt payable, amounts due to Employees’ Retirement System,
compensated absences, judgments and claims, other post-employment benefits and liability for landfil
closure and post-closure care costs are recognized in the government-wide financial statements.
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In the fund financial statements, long-term obligations are not reported as liabilities. The debt proceeds
are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest are reported as
expenditures when paid.

Compensated absences (accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay and other employee benefits)

Town employees receive accumulated earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits pursuant to
labor confracts or Town policies. In the event of termination or upon retirement, an employee is entitled to
payment for accumulated vacation and sick leave at various rates subject to certain maximum limitations.

The liability for vested or accumulated vacation or sick leave (compensated absences) is recorded as
current and non-current obligations in the government-wide financial statements. The current portion of
this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial statements, only the compensated
absence liability payable from expendable available financial resources is incurred. The amount that is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as expenditures and
a liability in the fund financial statement and the respective fund that will pay it.

. Notes payable

Tax anticipation notes and revenue anticipation notes are generally recorded as fund liabilities in the fund
receiving the proceeds. Bond anticipation notes are classified as fund liabilities in the funds receiving the
proceeds unless all legal steps have been taken to refinance the notes and the intent is supported by an
ability to consummate refinancing the short-term note on a long-term basis at which time they are recorded
as other financing sources, bond anticipation notes redeemed from appropriations, in the fund financial
statements. In the government-wide Statement of Net Position they are recorded as a liability.

Equity classifications:

Government-wide financial statements

In the government-wide financial statements there are three classes of net position:

Net investment in capital assets: consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced
by outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted: consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to
those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricied assets if the asset results from a resource flow that
also results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported.

Unrestricted: reports all other net position that do not meet the definition of the above two classifications
and are deemed fo be available for general use by the Town.

Fund financial statements

In the fund financial statements, there are five classifications of fund balance:

1. Nonspendable - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Nonspendable fund balance
includes prepaid expenses recorded in the Town’s various funds in the amount of $2,848,003.

2. Restricted - Includes amounts with constraints placed on the use of resources either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Town has established the
following restricted fund balances:

Debt Service

According to General Municipal Law §6-l, the Debt Service reserve must be established for the
purpose of retiring the outstanding debt service payments on the general obligation bonds used to
originally purchase the property. The funding of the reserve is from the proceeds of the sale of
property or capital improvement.
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A summary of the activity in the debt service reserve for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as
follows:

Balance - beginning $ 5,635,147
Board approved transfer of fund balance 6,053,192
Liquidation of reserve for debt service payments (68,016)
Balance - ending $ 11,620,323
Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments of
expenditures are recorded for budgetary control purposes in order to reserve applicable
appropriations, is employed as a control in preventing over-expenditure of established
appropriations. Open encumbrances are reported as restricted fund balance in all funds other than
the Major Funds, since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities and will be honored through
budget appropriations in the subsequent year.

Tax Stabilization

According to General Municipal Law §6-1 and Town Law, the Tax Stabilization Reserve was established
for the purposes of providing a degree of stability and to weather fluctuations in revenues and
expenditures without severely impacting property fax rates. The monies in the reserve may be
expended only pursuant to an appropriation for purposes authorized by the Town Supervisor and the
adoption of a resolution appropriating the recommended amount by at least two-thirds of the voting
strength of the Town Board.

Capital

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted for capital
outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilites and other capital assets, and
accordingly the Town has reflected it's fund balance as such. Capital projects funds exclude those types
of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in trust for
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Community Preservation Fund

The Town established a Community Preservation Fund (the “CPF") in accordance with Town Law
Section 64-d and 64-e and Local Law Section 139 for the purpose of protecting and preserving open
and undeveloped lands in the Town of Southampton, including wetlands, woodlands, agricultural lands,

shore lands; and other natural resources of the Town, for the purpose of protecting historic place and
properties within the Town and for the purpose of providing the Town’s visitors and residents with
outdoor recreational opportunities. Funding of this reserve is primarily from revenues collected from the
two percent real estate transfer tax imposed by the Town pursuant to Article 31-D of New York State Tax
Law. In accordance with Local Law Section 139, financial activities for the Community Preservation
Fund are maintained in a separate bank account. The Town currently accounts for the financial activity
of the Community Preservation Fund as a major governmental fund. In accordance with the purpose of
this fund, not more than ten percent of the fund shall be utilized for management and stewardship
activities. Upon completion of the Community Preservation Project Plan, any remaining funds will be
applied to reduce any bonded indebtedness or other obligations occurred.
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Restricted fund balance includes the following:

Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund -

Tax Stabilization $ 5,166,580

Debt Service 1,362,768
Police District Fund -

Tax Stabilization 356,794

Debt Service 12,346
Town Outside Village Fund -

Tax Stabilization 361,739

Debt Service 11,179
Highway Fund -

Tax Stabilization 572,374

Debt Service 251,815
Public Safety Communications -

Tax Stabilization 168,382

Debt Service 6,026
Capital Projects Fund 5,770,340
Community Preservation Fund -

Debt Service 9,815,518

Community Preservation Operations 43,314,246

Non-Major Governmental Funds:

Debt Service 160,671

Restricted for grants 1,455,075

Restricted for specific revenue sources 5,267,297

Restricted for preservation and protection

of the waterways 740,054

$ 74,783,204

Committed - Includes amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision making authority,
i.e., the Town Board. The Town has no committed fund balances as of December 31, 2011.

Assigned - Includes amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, should be reported as assigned fund balance,
except for tax stabilization arrangements.

Assigned fund balance includes the following:

Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund -

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures $ 443,356

Encumbrances 22,570
Police District Fund -

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 12,346

Encumbrances 1,389
Town Qutside Village Fund -

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 9,497
Highway Fund -

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 243,552

Designated for special purpose 359,317
Public Safety Communications -

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 1,357

Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 25,358
Designated for special purpose 2,824,053

$ 3,842,795
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5. Unassigned - Includes all other General Fund net assets that do not meet the definition of the above
four classifications and are deemed to be available for general use by the Town.

Order of use of fund balance

The Town’s policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance, restricted fund balance,
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal
year. For all funds, nonspendable fund balances are determined first and then restricted fund balances
for specific purposes are determined. In the General Fund, committed fund balance is determined next
and then assigned. The remaining amounts are reported as unassigned. Assignments of fund balance
cannot cause a negative unassigned fund balance.

3. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the fund financial
statements and the government-wide financial statements, certain financial transactions are treated
differently. The basic financial statements contain a full reconciliation of these items. The differences result
primarily from the economic focus of the Statement of Activities, compared with the current financial
resources focus of the governmental funds.

A. Total fund balances of governmental funds vs. net position of governmental activities

Total fund balances of the Town's governmental funds differ from “net position” of governmental activities
reported in the Statement of Net Position. This difference primarily results from the additional long-term
economic focus of the Statement of Net Position versus the solely current financial resources focus of the
governmental funds Balance Sheet.

B. Statement of Revenues, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balance vs. Statement of Activities

Differences between the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance and the Statement of Activities fall into one of three broad categories. The categories are
shown below:

1. Long-term revenue/expense differences

Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when they
are considered “available”, whereas the Statement of Activities reports revenues when earned.
Differences in long-term expenses arise because governmental funds report on a modified accrual
basis, whereas the accrual basis of accounting is used on the Statement of Activities.

2. Capital related differences

Capital related differences include the difference between proceeds from the sale of capital assets
reported on governmental fund financial statements and the gain or loss on the sale of assets as
reported on the Statement of Activities, and the difference between recording an expenditure for the
purchase of capital items in the governmental fund financial statements and depreciation expense on
those items as recorded in the Statement of Activities.

3. Long-term debt transaction differences

Long-term debt transaction differences occur because both interest and principal payments are
recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements, whereas interest payments
are recorded in the Statement of Activities as incurred, and principal payments are recorded as a
reduction of liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
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4, STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Data

The Town follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1.

On or before September 20", each department, office or district submits to the Supervisor and the
Comptroller a detailed estimate of the budget known as “departmental estimates” for the amount of
revenue to be received and expenditures to be made for the ensuing year.

On or before September 30", the Supervisor files with the Town Clerk and the Comptroller and presents
to the Town Board a tentative budget for the ensuing year.

On or before October 5", the Town Board reviews the tentative budget and files a preliminary budget
with the Town Clerk.

The Town Board conducts a public hearing on the preliminary budget and on or before November 20",
the Town Board meets to adopt the budget now known as the “adopted budget”.

Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device for the
General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds. The Town Board adopts the budget and establishes
legal level of control of the budget at the object level of expenditures. The object level identifies
expenditures by the article purchased or service obtained in order to carry out a function. Appropriations
are adopted at the object level. All budgetary amendments and transfers of appropriation require Town
Board approval. Appropriations for all governmental funds except the Capital Projects Fund lapse at
year-end. In order to show the full legal level of budgetary compliance for the General Fund and certain
Special Revenue Funds, detailed individual statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
equity — budget and actual, are presented as supplemental schedules in this report.

Budgets for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds are legally adopted for each year.
The budgets are adopted on a basis of accounting consistent with GAAP. In the event that actual
revenues received exceed budgeted amounts, additional budgetary appropriations may be made. The
Capital Projects Fund and Special Grant Funds are budgeted on a project or grant basis. The Special
Revenue Fund and the Trustees of the Freeholders and Commonalty do not have annually adopted
budgets.
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B. Fund balances

Designation of fund balance

Portions of the assigned fund balances at December 31, 2011 were designated for the subsequent year's
operating budgets as follows:

Fund Balance

Total Designated For
Fund Fund Balance Subsequent Year
Major governmental funds:
General Fund $ 465,926 $ 443,356
Police District Fund 13,735 12,346
Town Qutside Village Fund 9,497 9,497
Highway Fund 602,869 243,552
Public Safety Communications 1,357 1,357
Non-Major governmental funds:
Special Fund 5,267,930 -
Trustees of the Freeholders and
Commonalty 740,054 -
Lighting Districts 412,604 -
Public Parking Districts 96,609 -
Water Districts 1,897,710 25,358
Ambulance Districts 238,010 -
Parks Districts 265,112 -

Fund deficits

Individual funds with total fund deficits as of December 31, 2011 were as follows:

Fund Deficit Total Fund
Unassigned Balance
Undesignated (Deficit)
Fire Protection Districts $ (59421) $ (59,421)
Coastal Erosion (22,020) (22,020)

The Fire Protection Districts’ deficit resulted from unanticipated increases in electric costs over the years.
The Town anticipates eliminating this deficit, in the upcoming year, through increases in subsequent year
budget appropriations which_will_result_in_increased_tax assessment for_the_Fire Protection_Districts._During

the current year, the net deficit was reduced from $(135,305) to its current balance of $(59,421).

The Coastal Erosion fund deficit resulted from the Town's participation in a beach and dune restoration
project within the Bridgehampton Erosion Control District (the “District”’). The Town will develop a deficit
reduction plan in the upcoming year.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - CUSTODIAL CREDIT, CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT, INTEREST
RATE AND FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

Cash consists of funds deposited in demand accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with
maturities of less than three months.

The Town's investments are governed by a formal investment policy. The Town's monies must be deposited in

FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The Town is authorized to use
certificates of deposit, N.O.W., super N.O.W. accounts and money market deposit accounts.
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It is the Town's policy to require collateral held in the name of the Town for demand deposits, money market
deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that
may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State
and its municipalities and school districts.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits/Investments: Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when, in the event of the
failure of a depository financial institution, a government may be unable to recover deposits, or recover collateral
securities that are in possession of an outside agency. Custodial credit risk for investments exists when, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party.

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, directs that deposits be disclosed as
exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance, and the deposits are either:

= Uncollateralized

= Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or

= Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not
in the Town’s name

At December 31, 2011, the Town’s book balances were $140,029,678. The Town’s bank deposit balances were
$154,770,419, of which $11,158,448 was covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, $126,458,737
was covered by collateral held by the Town’s agent, a third-party financial institution, in the Town’s name and
$25,654,070 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or its trust, in the name of
the Town.

At December 31, 2011, the Town's component units’ bank balances were entirely covered by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Credit Risk: State law and Town law limit investments to those authorized by State statutes. The Town has a
written investment policy.

Interest-Rate Risk: Interest-rate risk arises because potential purchasers of debt securities will not agree to pay
face value for those securities if interest rates substantially increase, thereby affording potential purchasers more
favorable rates on essentially equivalent securities. Accordingly, such investments would have to be held to
maturity to avoid a potential loss.

Concentration of Credit Risk: Credit risk can arise as a result of failure to adequately diversify investments.
Concentration risk disclosure is required for positions of 5 percent or more in securities of a single issuer.

As of December 31, 2011, the Town did not have any investments subject to credit risk, interest-rate risk,
concentration of credit risk, or custodial credit risk.

~ INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivable and payable balances for the primary government at December 31, 2011 represent primarily
the payment of operating expenditures that will be reimbursed subsequent o year end and are stated as follows:
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Amount Amount

Receivable Payable

Major Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ 2,765,417 $ -

Police District Fund - 1,730,884

Town Outside Village Fund 2,700 7,047

Highway Fund 1,350 -

Public Safety Communications 1,469 -

Capital Projects Fund - 1,345,509
Non-Major Governmental Funds 670,389 507,312
Major Business-Type Funds:

Beaches and Marinas 76,196 54,686

Waste Management 623,687 -
Agency Funds 3,645,438 4,141,208

3 7,786,646 $ 7,786,646

Interfund transfer balances for the primary government at December 31, 2011 represent primarily the payment of
operating and capital expenditures in addition to general obligation bond and bond anticipation note principal and
interest and are stated as follows:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 1,105,804 $ 3,267,382
Town Outside Village Fund 7,393 129,963
Highway Fund 8,263 414,179
Public Safety Communications 4,670 -
Capital Projects Fund 930,059 985,525
Community Preservation Fund 268,858 756,859
Non-Major Governmental Funds 97,773 515,272
Major Business-Type Funds:
Beaches and Marinas 1,004,949 10,000
Waste Management 2,651,411 -

$ 6,079,180 $ 6,079,180
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7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental funds capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 were as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Total

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure -
Bridges
Landfill
Roads, curbs and sidewalks
Lighting system
Bulkheads, piers and boardwalks
Water and sewer mains

Total depreciable capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure -
Bridges
Landfill
Roads, curbs and sidewalks
Lighting system
Bulkheads, piers and boardwalks
Water and sewer mains

Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets, net

Total capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
$ 480,217,567 $ 25,676,642 $ 505,894,209
$ 480,217,567 $ 25,676,642 505,894,209
$ 37,631,530 $ 1,866,347 39,497,877
14,509,678 623,103 15,132,781
25,262,931 1,987,893 27,250,824
1,216,896 79,575 1,296,471
9,412,515 - 9,412,515
345,313,282 3,964,675 349,277,957
1,349,791 - 1,349,791
9,354,536 796,044 10,150,580
10,249,217 1,158,689 11,407,908
$ 454,300,376 $ 10,476,326 464,776,702
3 8,265,145 $ 764,924 9,030,069
6,180,437 555,424 6,735,861
16,603,792 2,349,580 18,953,372
184,201 34,220 218,421
4,961,864 313,750 5,275,614
173,895,779 13,640,398 187,536,177
1,293,754 15,296 1,309,050
4,885,733 267,787 5,153,520
3,097,382 214,967 3,312,349
$ 219,368,087 $ 18,156,346 237,524,433
227,252,269

$ 733,146,478

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General governmental support
Public safety

Transportation

Economic assistance

Culture and recreation

Home and community

Total governmental activities depreciation expense
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Enterprise Funds capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 were as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Total

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total depreciable capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Total accumuiated depreciation

Total depreciable capital assets, net

Total capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to enterprise functions as follows:

Waste management
Beaches and marinas
Golf course

Total enterprise funds depreciation expense

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
11,287,063 - - $ 11,287,063
11,287,063 - - 11,287,063
4,422 433 - - 4,422 433
8,710,155 10,177 - 8,720,332
2,394,416 418,008 - 2,812,424
15,527,004 428,185 - 15,955,189
961,867 91,435 - 1,053,302
1,233,390 435,564 - 1,668,954
1,579,611 196,190 - 1,775,801
3,774,868 723,189 - 4,498,057
11,457,132
$ 22,744,195
$ 418,240
286,975
17,974
$ 723,189

The Town of Southampton evaluates prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to
determine whether impairment of a capital asset has occurred. The Town's policy is to record an impairment
loss in the period when the Town determines that the carrying amount of the asset will not be recoverable. At
December 31, 2011, the Town has not recorded any such impairment losses.
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Discretely presented component unit's capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31, 2011

were as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction-in-progress

Total

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Equipment
Building improvements

Total depreciable capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Equipment
Building improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable capital assets, net

Total capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged as follows:

Home and community services

SHORT-TERM DEBT

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
683,700 - $ - $ 683,700
27,116 6,757 - 33,873
710,816 6,757 $ - 717,573
2,502,196 - $ (66,400) 2,435,796
163,866 1,800 - 165,666
269,879 52,741 - 322,620
2,935,941 54,541 3 (66,400) 2,924,082
331,430 63,646 $ (2,490) 392,586
36,372 24127 - 60,499
19,192 17,382 - 36,574
386,994 105,155 $ (2,490) 489,659
2,434,423
$ 3,151,996
$ 105,155

Bond anticipation notes (BANs) are used as a temporary means of financing capital expenditures in the Capital
Projects Fund and land acquisitions in the Community Preservation Fund. State law requires that BANs issued
for capital purposes be converted to long-term obligations within five years after the original issue date. The
notes or renewal thereof may not extend more than two years beyond the original date of issue unless a portion
is redeemed within two years and within each 12 month period thereafter. Liabilities for BANs are generally
accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund and Community Preservation Fund. BANs were paid from the
proceeds of bond issuance after renewal of these notes.

A summary of changes in short-term debt for the Town for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:

Bond anticipation notes $

Interest on short-term debt for the year was composed of:

Interest paid

Beginning Ending
Increases Reductions Balance
7,072,200 3 - $ 7,072,200 -
$ 47,712
Less interest accrued in the prior year -
Plus interest accrued in the current year -
$ 47,712

Total expense

-43-




9. LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

Long-term liability balances and activity for the year are summarized below:

. Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within Non-Current
Balance Increases Reductions Balance One Year Liabilities
Governmental activities:
General obligation serial bonds $ 126,399,762 $ 13,862,000 $ 10,361,293 % 129,900,469 $ 11,035880 $ 118,864,589
Plus premiums on issuance 805,067 - 86,509 718,558 86,509 632,049
Total general obligation bonds 127,204,829 13,862,000 10,447,802 130,619,027 11,122,389 119,496,638
Special assessment bonds
with governmental commitment 246,638 - 44,607 202,031 32,820 169,211
Instaliment purchase debt payable - 19,572,700 6,000,000 13,572,700 3,500,000 10,072,700
Due to Employees' Retirement System 164,652 1,233,654 13,088 1,385,217 117,381 1,267,836
Compensated absences 9,985,911 1,215,596 479,059 10,722,448 88,179 10,634,269
Judgments and claims payable 1,808,500 150,115 258,615 1,700,000 - 1,700,000
Other post-employment benefits 27,742,065 13,518,683 3,258,976 38,001,772 - 38,001,772
Estimated liability for landfill closure
and post-closure care costs 3,815,990 541,674 244,336 4,113,328 228,586 3,884,742
Total governmental activities $ 170,968,585 $§ 50,094422 § 20,746,484 $ 200,316,523 $ 15,089,355 $ 185,227,168
Business-type activities:
General obligation serial bonds $ 8573600 $ 298000 % 634,100 $ 8,237,500 § 656,300 $  7.581,200
Compensated absences 153,559 - 39,594 113,865 - 113,965
Total business-type activities $ 8727159 & 298,000 & 673,694 § 8,351,465 § 656,300 $ 7695165
Discretely presented component unit:
Mortgages payable $ 2965290 $ - $ 37598 § 2927692 % 39,871 $ 2,887,821
General obligation serial bonds 110,000 - - 110,000 6,500 103,500
Total discretely presented
component unit $ 3075290 % - $ 37598 $ 3037692 % 46,371 $ 2991321

General obligation bonds: The Town borrows money in order to acquire land or equipment or construct buildings
and improvements. This enables the cost of these capital assets to be borne by the present and future
taxpayers receiving the benefit of the capital assets. These long-term liabilities, which are backed by the full faith
and credit of the Town, bear interest at various rates from 1.031% to 6.450% and have maturity dates in 2011
through 2030.

On May 1, 2010, the Town issued $9,430,000 in serial bonds with an interest rate of 2.00% increasing to 5.00%
to advance refund its outstanding 1997 Serial Bonds of $875,000, 1998 Serial Bonds of $750,000, 1999
Serial Bonds of $650,000, 2000 Serial Bonds of $1,250,000, 2001 Serial Bonds of $1,425,000 and 2002
Serial Bonds of $5,175,000. The net proceeds of which $10,392,961 (after payment of $107,608 in
underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) was used to purchase United States government
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all
future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered to be defeased, and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the Town’s financial statements. The bonds were called on

September 29, 2010. The economic gain on the transaction (the difference between the present values of
the debt service payments on the old and new debt) was approximately $977,698.
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The following is a summary of the maturity of long-term indebtedness:

Primary governmental activities

Description
of Issue

NYS EFC bonds
NYS EFC bonds
NYS EFC bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
NYS EFC bonds
Open space preservation serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Refunding serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Open space preservation serial bonds
Open space preservation serial bonds
Refunding serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds

Primary business-type activities

Description
of Issue

Public improvement serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds
Public improvement serial bonds

Special assessment bonds

Description
of Issue

Public improvement serial bonds
Refunding serial bonds

“The-following-is-a-summary-of maturing-debt service requirements:

Primary governmental activities

Year ended

December 31

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2030

Issue Final Interest Outstanding
Date Maturity Rate at 2011
6/1/1995 5/15/2015 3.700% - 5.550% $ 160,000
7/1/1997 6/15/2017 3.750% - 5.350% 210,000
3/13/2003 4/15/2020 1.031% - 4.551% 465,000
11/1/2003 10/1/2023 2.750% - 4.500% 5,613,100
3/4/2004 3/4/2020 1.056% - 4.235% 8,415,000
4/15/2004 4/15/2020 3.750% - 4.375% 11,600,000
11/1/2004 11/1/2024 3.125% - 4.125% 10,601,100
212412005 5/1/2016 3.000% - 5.000% 1,850,000
2/1/2006 12/1/2020 3.250% - 4.000% 3,564,200
9/15/2007 9/15/2022 3.875% - 4.125% 8,623,000
1/15/2009 1/15/2030 3.000% - 4.375% 18,500,000
4/1/2009 4/1/2030 3.000% - 4.500% 18,500,000
5/1/12010 5/1/2022 2.000% - 5.000% 8,585,069
8/12/2010 8/12/2029 2.000% - 3.250% 19,352,000
4/28/2011 4/15/2022 2.000% - 4.000% 13,862,000
_§ 129,900,469
Issue Final Interest Qutstanding
Date Maturity Rate at 2011
11/1/2003 10/1/2023 2.750% - 4.500% $ 486,900
11/1/2004 11/1/2024 3.125% - 4.125% 123,900
2/1/2006 12/1/2020 3.250% - 4.000% 2,008,700
9/15/2007 9/15/2022 3.875% - 4.375% 3,002,000
8/12/2010 8/12/2029 2.000% - 3.250% 2,318,000
4/28/2011 4/15/2022 2.000% - 4.000% 298,000
§ 8237500
Issue Final Interest Outstanding
Date Maturity Rate at 2011
2/1/2006 12/1/2020 3.250% - 4.000% $ 77,100
5/1/12010 5/1/12016 2.000% - 5.000% 124,931
$ 202,031
Principal Interest Total
$ 11,035,880 4,572,121 15,608,001
11,432,200 4,018,999 15,451,199
11,820,695 3,674,898 15,495,593
11,344,801 3,305,787 14,650,588
10,684,593 2,942,908 13,627,501
42,243,900 9,653,211 51,897,111
18,183,400 3,745,669 21,929,069
10,155,000 935,622 11,090,622
$ 126,900,469 32,849,215 159 749,684
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Interest on primary governmental activities long-term debt for the year was composed of;

Interest paid $ 4,226,767
Less interest accrued in the prior year (1,368,835)
Plus interest accrued in the current year 1,425,813
Total expense $ 4,283,745

Primary business-type activities:

Principal Interest Total

Year ended

December 31
2012 $ 656,300 $ 271,576 $ 927,876
2013 693,300 244,208 937,508
2014 687,700 215,929 903,629
2015 696,000 194,670 890,670
2016 721,300 174,752 896,052
2017-2021 3,231,300 481,328 3,712,628
2022-2026 1,106,600 99,675 1,206,275
2027-2030 445,000 21,441 466,441

$ 8,237,500 $ 1,703,579 § 9,941,079

Special assessment bonds - The Town also has $202,031 of special assessment debt outstanding to provide
funds for road improvements. These bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the property owners
benefited by these improvements. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid delinquent special
assessments at the time a debt service payment is due, the government must provide resources to cover the
deficiency until other resources are received. The bonds have interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%
and are payable over the next 10 years.

The following is a summary of maturing debt service requirements:

Principal Interest Total

Year ended

December 31
2012 $ 32,820 $ 12,157 $ 44 977
2013 44,500 10,941 55,441
2014 31,605 7,017 38,622
2015 29,199 5,585 34,784
2016 ‘ 29,107 4,840 33,947
2017-2020 34,800 3,480 38,280
$ 202,031 $ 44 020 $ 246,051

Installment purchase obligation - During 2011, the Town entered into a $19,572,000 installment purchase
obligation to finance the cost of acquisition of certain permanent interest in land through the Community
Preservation Fund. The outstanding balance of the obligation as of December 31, 2011 is $13,572,700.
Costs associated with the obligation totaled $19,572,700.

Terms of the obligation include an initial principal payment of $6,000,000, with annual principal installments
of $3,500,000 due on October 1, 2012 through 2014, and a final principal payment of $3,072,700 on October
1, 2015. The installment purchase obligation is non-interest bearing. If in the event, any instaliment of
principal is not paid by the due date it shall bear interest from such date at a rate of 5% per annum to the
date of payment. Terms of the installment purchase obligation do not allow for prepayment of the obligation.
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Other long-term debt - Liabilities for claims and judgments, other post-employment benefits and landfill
closure and post-closure care costs are liquidated through future budgetary appropriations in the General
Fund. The liabilities for compensated absences and due to Employees’ Retirement System are liquidated
through future budgetary appropriation in the funds that gave rise to the liability, with the majority being
liquidated through the General Fund and Police Districts Fund.

Mortgages payable - The Housing Authority received a mortgage through Bridgehampton National Bank for
$1,800,000 (30 years) which is secured by an apartment complex, payable in monthly instaliments of
$10,792 and guaranteed by the Town of Southampton. Interest is calculated at 6.00% and the mortgage
matures on August 23, 2035. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2011 is $1,634,822.

The Housing Authority assumed and adjusted the existing mortgage through the United States Department of
Agriculture and Rural Development in the amount of $1,332,038 which is secured by an apartment complex
and payable in monthly installments off $6,407. Interest is calculated at 5.38% with a subsidy credit of
$3,581 and the mortgage balloons in 2035 with approximately $941,039 remaining. The outstanding balance
as of December 31, 2011 is $1,292,870.

The following is a summary of maturing debt service requirements:

Principal Interest Total

Year ended

December 31
2012 $ 39,871 $ 123,540 $ 163,411
2013 42,279 121,132 163,411
2014 44,834 118,577 163,411
2015 47 543 115,868 163,411
2016 50,417 112,994 163,411
2017-2021 301,665 515,390 817,055
2022-2026 404,616 412,439 817,055
2027-2031 542,780 274,275 817,055
2032-2036 1,453,687 86,526 1,540,213

3 2,927692 § 1,880,741 $ 4,808,433

Bond payable - In June 2010, the Housing Authority issued $110,000 of general obligation bonds at an
interest rate of 3.55%. The proceeds will be used to reconstruct, furnish and equip a single family low
income rental housing project located at 203 Ludlum Avenue in the Town of Southampton. The outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2011 is $110,000.

The following is a summary of maturing debt service requirements:

Principal Interest Total

Year ended

December 31
2012 $ 6,500 $ 3,905 $ 10,405
2013 6,500 3,674 10,174
2014 10,000 3,444 13,444
2015 10,000 3,089 13,089
2016 10,000 2,734 12,734
2017-2020 67,000 6,213 73,213
3 110,000 $ 23,059 $ 133,059
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10. PENSION PLANS

The Town of Southampton participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
("NYSERS") and the New York State Local Police and Fire Retirement System (“NYSPFRS”) (collectively the
“Systems”). These are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems. The Systems offer
a wide range of plans and benefits, which are related to years of service and final average salary, vesting of
retirement benefits, death and disability.

The NYSERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. New York State Retirement
and Social Security Law (“NYSRSSL”") governs obligations of employers and employees to contribute, and
benefits to employees. The NYSERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to NYSERS, Office
of the State Comptroller, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the
NYSRSSL. As set forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York (“Comptroller”) serves as sole
trustee and administrative head of the Systems. The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and
regulations for the administration and transaction of the business of the Systems and for custody and control of
their funds.

The Systems are noncontributory for the employee, except for those who joined the Systems after July 27,
1976, who contribute 3% of their salary and after ten years are no longer required to contribute. Prior to
October 1, 2000, all employees who joined the System after July 27, 1976 were required to contribute 3% of their
salary. Effective January 1, 2010, new employees joining the System will contributed 3.5% of their salary and
will contribute for their entire career. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually
the rates expressed as proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computing the contributions
required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund.

The Town is required to contribute at a rate determined actuarially by the Systems. The Town contributions
made to the Systems also include additional contributions to fund various early retirement incentives made
available to the Town employees. The credits and miscellaneous adjustments represent modifications made
by the NYSERS and NYSPFRS for prior year's contributions. Required contributions for the current and two
preceding years were:

NYSERS NYSPFRS
Annual Incentive/ Reconciliation and Annual Incentive/ Reconciliation and
Year Required Rate Miscellaneous Required Rate Miscellaneous Total
Ended Contribution Amortization Adjustments Contribution Amortization Adjustments Payment
2011 $ 3,496,931 $ 797,438 % (1,376,854) $ 2,431,653 § 436,216 $ (763,025) § 5,022,359
2010 2,743,049 164,654 (282,667) 1,931,364 - (188,141) 4,368,259
2009 1,859,470 - (4,910) 1,758,638 - 7,344 3,620,542

The State Legislature allows local governments to amortize certain contribution costs. The cost of the

amortization is billed and paid over a ten year period and includes an interest rate of 5.00%. As of December 31,
2011 the total principal payments payable by the Town are as follows:

Year ended
December 31,

2012 $ 117,381
2013 122,022
2014 126,849
2015 131,868
2016 137,088

2017-2021 750,009

$ 1,385,217
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11. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM (“LOSAP OR PROGRAM”)

Program Description

The Town of Southampton sponsors four Volunteer Ambulance Workers Service Award Programs (the “Plans”):
Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corp, Flanders Northampton Ambulance Corp, Hampton Bays
Ambulance Corp and Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp. All plans are single-employer defined benefit
plans covering the Town's volunteer ambulance workers.

Funding Policy

The Plans are established under New York State Law Section 565-B, A7635-B, Article 11AAA. The Plans are
non-contributory. The Town is required to contribute the total amount sufficient to cover the normal cost of the
plans.

Participation, vesting and service credit

Any volunteer ambulance worker who completes five years of service and attains age 65 is eligible for normal
retirement benefits. Participants acquire a nonforfeitable right to a service award after being credited with 5
years of ambulatory service or upon attaining the program’s entitlement age. In general, an active volunteer
ambulance worker is credited with a year of ambulatory service for each calendar year after the establishment of
the program in which he or she accumulated fifty points. Points are granted for the performance of certain
activities in accordance with a system established by the sponsor on the basis of a statutory list of activities and
point values. A participant may also receive credit for 5 years of service rendered prior to the establishment of
the program.

Benefits

A participant's benefit under the program is the actuarial equivalent of a monthly payment for life equal to $20
multiplied by the person’s total number of years of ambulatory service. The number of years of ambulatory
service used to compute the benefit cannot exceed forty. Except in the case of disability or death, benefits are
payable when a participant reaches entitlement age. The program provides statutorily mandated death and
disability benefits.

Fiduciary investment and control

Service credit is determined by the governing board of the sponsor, based on information certified to the
governing board by each ambulance company having members who participate in the program. Each
ambulance company must maintain all required records on forms prescribed by the governing board.

The Plans are administered by Penflex, Inc. with all provisions and amendments subject to approval of the Town
Board. An annual actuarial valuation report for the plans can be obtained from the Town of Southampton
_Comptroller's Office. None of the pension_plans._issue_separate audited_reports_on_ the pension plans.—The
designated programs administrator's functions include Installation Assistance including: Specimen Adoption
Agreement, Specimen Master Plan; Insurance Applications; Participant Enrollment Forms; Explanation of
Benefits; Benefit Certificates and Administrative Assistance: Reminder Letter to Sponsor with Census for current
anniversary date provided annually; Participant's Benefit Calculation at the time of termination or retirement for
verification by the Plan Sponsor, Member Census and Premium Analysis Report provided annually; Valuation
and Recommended Deposit provided annually; Summary of Required Contribution; Actuarial review; and
Recommended Program Enhancement as appropriate. Disbursements of program assets for the payment of
benefits or administrative expenses must be approved. The following is an explanation of the process for
approving disbursements:

A. Payment of benefits

1. Entitlement benefits

Penflex, Inc. prepares and submits to the Sponsor a Verification of Benefits Statement and an
Annuity Enrollment Form for participants active at entitement age and for vested participants
upon termination from the Program. Following review for accuracy, the Sponsor signs and  returns
the paperwork to Penflex, Inc. to disburse entitlement benefits.
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2. Death benefits

Upon notification from the Sponsor of a participant death, Penflex, Inc. prepares a Verification of
Benefits Statement and a Lump Sum Death Benefit Form. Following review for accuracy, the
Sponsor signs and returns the paperwork accompanied by a death certificate to Penflex, Inc.

3. Disability benefits

Upon notification from the Sponsor of a participant total and permanent disability, Penflex, Inc.
prepares a Verification of Benefits Statement, a Physician Statement Form and a Lump Sum
Disability Benefit Form. Following review for accuracy, the Sponsor signs and retumns the
paperwork authorizing Penflex, Inc. to disburse a disability benefit.

B. Payment of administrative expenses

Per the executed Service Fee Agreement, the Sponsor agrees to payment as contracted.

Program assets are required to be held in trust by LOSAP legislation, for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries or for the purpose of defraying the reasonable
expenses of the operation and administration of the program. Program assets are held in compliance with
GML Article 11A 217(j).

Authority to invest program assets is vested in the Glen Falls Bank and Trust Company. Subject to
restrictions in the program document, program assets are invested in accordance with a statutory “prudent
person” rule.

The Sponsor is required to retain an actuary to determine the amount of the Sponsor's contributions to the
plan. The actuary retained by the Sponsor for this purpose is Penflex, Inc. Portions of the following
information are derived from reports prepared by the actuary dated August 8 and 11, 2011.

Plan contributions

Pension contributions are determined based on an annual actuarial calculation. The required contribution for
the Plans consists of two components. The first component is the annual prior service cost which equals the

earned before the effective date of the Service Award Program. The second component is the “normal cost,”
which is equal to the level annual payment required to fund the portion of the current participants’ projected
benefits based on their service credit earned after the effective date of the Service Award program. Based
upon accepted actuarial methods and the assumptions used, it has been determined that the contributions
for the Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corporation of $58,535, the Flanders Northampton
Volunteer Ambulance Corporation of .$63,238,,,»the-Hampton -Bays-Volunteer-Ambulance Corporation of

$59,169 and the Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation of $41,019 for the year ended December
" 31, 2010 were sufficient to satisfy current and future service award obligations upon eligibility for retirement.
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Program financial condition (As of December 31, 2010)

Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corporation -

Actuarial present value of vested benefits $ 481,804

Net assets available for benefit $ 333,233

Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Actuarial present value of vested benefits $ 468,900

Net assets available for benefit $ 372,924

Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Actuarial present value of vested benefits $ 391,923

Net assets available for benefit $ 361,607

Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation

Actuarial present value of vested benefits $ 333,679

Net assets available for benefit $ 301,044

Receipts and disbursements (For the year ended December 31, 2010)

Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginning of year $ 251,076
Changes during the year:

Plan contributions $ 57,192

Investment income earned 28,806

Trustee fees (1,265)

Administrative fees (2,576) 82,157
Program net assets, end of year $ 333,233
Contributions -

Amount-of-sponsor's-contribution-recommended-by-actuary $ 58,535

Amount of sponsor's actual contribution $ 57,192

-51-



Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginning of year 3 274,960
Changes during the year:

Pian contributions $ 71,750

Investment income earned 31,810

Benefits paid (1,303)

Trustee fees (1,383)

Administrative fees (2,910) 97,964
Program net assets, end of year $ 372,924

Contributions -

Amount of sponsor's contribution recommended by actuary $ 63,238

Amount of sponsor's actual contribution $ 71,750

Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginning of year $ 277,402
Changes during the year:

Plan contributions $ 58,325

Investment income earned 31,521

Benefits paid (1,369)

Trustee fees (1,395)

Administrative fees (2,877) 84,205
Program net assets, end of year $ 361,607

Contributions -

Amount of sponsor's contribution recommended by actuary $ 59,169

Amount of sponsor's actual contribution $ 58,325

Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Program net assets, beginning of year $ 235,835

Changes during the year:

Plan contributions $ 42,723

Investment income earned 26,586

Benefits paid (240)

Trustee fees (1,187)

Administrative fees (2,673) 65,209
Program net assets, end of year $ 301,044

Contributions -

Amount of sponsor's coniribution recommended by actuary $ 41,019

Amount of sponsor's actual contribution $ 42,723
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Funding methodology and actuarial assumptions

Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corporation -

Valuation Date December 31, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Attained Age Normal Frozen Initial Liability
Amortization Method Level Dollar, open
Pre-entitlement age mortality table None assumed
Post-entitlement age mortality table 1994 US Uninsured Pensioner 50/50 M/F Mortality Table
Remaining Amortization Period -0- Years
Asset Valuation Method Fair Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 6.5%

Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Valuation Date December 31, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Attained Age Normal Frozen Initial Liability
Amortization Method Level Dollar, open
Pre-entitlement age mortality table None assumed
Post-entitlement age mortality table 1994 US Uninsured Pensioner 50/50 M/F Mortality Table
Remaining Amortization Period -0- Years
Asset Valuation Method Fair Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 6.5%

Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Valuation Date December 31, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Attained Age Normal Frozen Initial Liability
Amortization Method Level Dollar, open
Pre-entitlement age mortality table None assumed
Post-entitlement age mortality table 1994 US Uninsured Pensioner 50/50 M/F Mortality Table
Remaining Amortization Period -0- Years
Asset Valuation Method Fair Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 6.5%

Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corporation -

Valuation Date December 31, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Attained Age Normal Frozen Initial Liability
Amortization Method Level Dollar, open
Pre-entitlement age mortality table None assumed
Post-entitlement age mortality table 1994 US Uninsured Pensioner 50/50 M/F Mortality Table
Remaining Amortization Period -0- Years
Asset Valuation Method Fair Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 6.5%

12. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan description and annual OPEB cost

The Town provides post-employment (health insurance, life insurance etc.) coverage to retired employees
and their survivors in accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts. The benefit levels,
employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Town's contractual agreements.
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The Town implemented GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-
Employment Benefits Other than Pensions, in the year ended December 31, 2008. This required the Town
to calculate and record a net other post-employment benefit obligation at year-end. The net other post-
employment benefit obligation is basically the cumulative difference between the actuarially required
contribution and the actual contributions made.

Currently, 226 retired employees receive health benefits from the Town. Retirees contribute 0% to 20% for
coverage depending on position held, date of hire, years of service, and fiscal year of retirement.

The Town recognizes the cost of providing health insurance annually as expenditures in the applicable funds
of the fund financial statements as payments are made. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Town
recognized $3,258,976 for its share of insurance premiums for currently enrolled retirees.

The Town has obtained an actuarial valuation report as of January 1, 2010 which indicates that the total
liability for other post-employment benefits is $149,490,000 ($61,279,000 related to retirees and $88,211,000
related to employees).

The Town's annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) for its plan is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employsr (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded liabilities (or funding excess)
over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Town's annual
OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Town's net OPEB
obligation:

For the
Year Ended
December 31,
2011
Annual required contribution $ 12,409,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,109,683
Annual OPEB cost 13,518,683
Contributions made 3,258,976
Increase in net OPEB obligation 10,259,707
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 27,742,065
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 38,001,772

~ The Town's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 2011 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/2009 $ 11,314,368 20.3% $ 17,874,248
12/31/2010 $ 12,528,170 21.2% $ 27,742,065
12/31/2011 $ 13,518,683 24.1% $ 38,001,772

-54-



13.

Funded status and funding progress

As of January 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $149,490,000 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $149,490,000. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far
into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

[n the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the projected unit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended
rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments
calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend
rate of 13.7% initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.7% after 70 years. The actuarial value
of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of shori-term volatility in the market value
of investments over a 30 year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2011 was 26 years.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Town employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn compensatory absences in varying amounts. In
the event of termination or upon retirement, an employee is entitled to payment for accumulated vacation, and
sick leave, subject to certain limitations.

Estimated vacation, sick leave and compensatory absences accumulated by governmental fund type employees
have been recorded in the Statements of Net Position. Payment of vacation time and sick leave is dependent
upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However, management
believes that sufficient resources will be made available for the payments of vacation, sick leave and
compensatory absences when such payments become due. As of December 31, 2011 the value of the

14,

accumulated vacation fime and sick leave for governmental activiies and business-type activities was
$10,836,413.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Risk management

The Town has adopted GASB Statement No. 10 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Issues. The Statement establishes standards for risk financing and insurance-related
activities. Liabilities for unpaid claims are accrued when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

In common with other municipalities, the Town receives numerous notices of claims. The Town carries
base general liability insurance coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $2,000,000 annual
aggregate. The Town carries an umbrella policy which provides additional insurance coverage of
$10,000,000 per occurrence with a $20,000,000 annual aggregate. Although the eventual outcome of
these claims cannot presently be determined, the Town is of the opinion that the ultimate settlement of
the outstanding claims will not result in a material adverse effect on the Town'’s financial position.
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B.

The Town is completely covered for workers’ compensation insurance and disability insurance.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage as compared to the prior year, and
there were no settlements in excess of insurance coverage over the last three years.

The Town estimates general liability reserves by consulting with legal counsel and past experience with
similar claims. The Town has not purchased any annuity contracts with regard to its general liability
claims. The schedule below presents the changes in claims liabilities for the past two years and includes
an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported.

2011 2010
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenditures at the
beginning of the year $ 1,808,500 $ 1,313,626
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenditures:
Provision for insured events of the current year and
increases in provision for insured events of prior years 150,115 731,352
Total incurred claims and adjustment expenditures 1,958,615 2,044,978
Payments:
Claims and claim adjustment expenditures attributable to
insured events of the current and prior years 258,615 236,478
Total payments 258,615 236,478
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenditures at the
end of the year $ 1,700,000 $ 1,808,500

Litigation

in common with other towns, the Town from time to time receives notices of claim and is party to
litigation. In the opinion of the Town Attorney, unless otherwise set forth herein and apart from matters
provided for by applicable insurance coverage, there are no significant claims or actions pending in which
the Town has not asserted a substantial and adequate defense, nor which, if determined against the
Town, would have an adverse material effect on the financial condition of the Town, in view of the Town's
ability to fund the same through use of appropriate funding mechanisms provided by the Local Finance
Law.

In June 2005, the Shinnecock Indian Nation (the “Shinnecocks”) commenced an action in the United
States District Court, Eastern District of New York, against the Town, the County of Suffolk, the State of
New York and several other parties seeking to recover both real property and monetary damages in the
amount of fair market value and/or rental value related to various properties in the Town. The Shinnecock

~Indian-Nation-claims-that-such-properties;-on-which-the-Shinnecocks-allegedly-had-a-leasehold-interest,

were illegally conveyed and that the Shinnecocks should be granted “possessory rights” to such
properties including restoration to the Shinnecocks of possession of such land. It is estimated that the
property represented by the claim is equal to approximately 3.85% of the total taxable real property in the
Town.

By Memorandum and Order dated November 28, 2006, U.S. District Judge Thomas Platt granted the
motion of defendants seeking to dismiss the Shinnecocks’ complaint in its entirety, pursuant to Fed. R.
Civ. P.12(b)(8), for equitable considerations, including plaintiffs’ delay in commencing the action.

The Shinnecocks filed a motion for reconsideration of Judge Platt's Memorandum and Order, and also
moved for leave to amend their complaint. They also filed a notice of appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals
(Second Circuit).

The Shinnecocks’ appeal, as well as their motions for reconsideration and leave to amend, have been
held in abeyance pending a decision from the Second Circuit Court of Appeals, in the case of Oneida
Nation of New York v. State of New York, as the Shinnecocks asserted that a decision in that case could
bear heavily on their litigation with the Town.

-56-



On August 9, 2010, a decision was rendered by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals in the Oneida
Nation case, and that decision was forwarded to Judge Platt by defendants, with the advice that in
defendants’ view, the decision is favorable, and indeed dispositive, of the Shinnecocks’ claims against
defendants. The Shinnecocks have requested that Judge Platt continue the indefinite adjournment of
both motions, to accommodate the possibility that the United States might agree to intervene in the
action on behalf of the Shinnecocks. Judge Platt has agreed to extend the adjournment of both motions
until June 1, 2012.

Landfill closure and post-closure care costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to place a final cover on landfill sites and to
perform certain maintenance and monitoring activities at landfill sites for at least thirty years after
closure. The North Sea Landfill site stopped receiving waste in 1995. Accordingly, as of December 31,
2011, the Town has recorded a liability of $4,113,328 in the government-wide financial statements which
represents the provision to be made in future budgets for unfunded closure and post-closure landfill
costs. Actual costs may be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in
regulations. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-closure care
as of December 31, 2011.

Government grants

The Town has received grants, which are subject to audit by agencies of the State and federal
governments. Such audits may result in disallowances and a request for a return of funds. Based on
prior years' experience, the Town's administration believes disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

. Property tax cap

In June 2011, subsequent to the adoption of the 2011 Town budget but prior to the adoption of the 2012
Town budget, New York State Legislature enacted Chapter 97, Laws of 2011 Real Property Tax Levy
Cap and Mandate Relief Provisions. For fiscal years beginning in 2012 through at least June 15, 2016,
growth in the property tax levy (the total amount to be raised through property taxes charged on a
municipality’s taxable assessed value of property) will be capped at 2 percent or the rate of inflation (but
not less than 1 percent), whichever is less, with some exceptions. Local governments can exceed the
tax levy limit by a 60% vote of the governing body, or by local law.

Lease commitments and leased assets

Operating leases

The Town is committed under a noncancellable operating lease for the Hampton Bays Town Center.
Total rental expenditures on the lease for the year ended December 31, 2011 totaled approximately
$300,000.

The-Town-is-also-committed-under-various-other-operating-leases-that-expire-on-various-dates-through
December 31, 2015. Total rental expenditures on these leases for the year ended December 31, 2011
totaled approximately $47,000.

Future minimum operating lease commitments are as follows:

Year ended
December 31,

2012 3 369,429
2013 383,471
2014 387,934
2015 382,297
2016 349,313

2017-2021 1,906,664

2022-2023 523,969

$ 4,303,077
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15. TWO PERCENT (2%) TRANSFER TAX

16.

In November 1998, the voters of the Town of Southampton approved a referendum for a 2% Transfer Tax, which
became effective on April 1, 1999. The transfer tax receipts are recorded in the Community Preservation Fund,
and are used for the purchase and/or preservation of agricultural land, open space, parks or historic preservation
sites. The tax generally applies to sales of vacant land worth $100,000 or more or sales of improved land worth
$250,000 or more. Conveyance of real property for open space, parks or historic preservation purposes are
exempt from this tax.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, and for the four previous years, the Town has the following 2% transfer
tax revenue and expenses associated with environmental or historic preservation purposes:

Year ended
December 31, Revenues Expenditures
2011 $ 39,218,441 $ 35,766,084
2010 34,225,797 20,334,329
2009 24,805,488 31,066,640
2008 33,948,760 80,636,665
2007 53,987,196 68,385,613

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

The following represents condensed financial statements for the Town of Southampton Housing Authority, a
discretely presented component unit, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Condensed Statement of Net Position:

Assets and Other Debits Liabilities
Capital Bonds and
Assets Other
Current Net of Non-current Current Long-Term Net
Assets Depreciation Assets Liabilities Liabilities Position

Town of Southampton
Housing Authority 3 494719 $ 3,151,996 3 23,077 3 110,172 $ 2,991,321 $ 568,299

Condensed Statement of Activities:

Program

Net Net
Expenses Revenue Revenues Other Change Position

Town of Southampton

17.

Housing Authority $ 798,153 §$ 507,802 $ (290,351) $ 199,860 § (90,491) $§ 568,299

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

GASB has issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
which enhances the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications
that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. The
Town adopted the provisions of this Statement during the year ended December 31, 2011.

GASB has issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained
in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which incorporates into the GASB's

authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the following
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: ;
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18.

19.

A. Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Statements and Interpretations

B. Accounting Principles Board Opinions

C. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Committee
on Accounting Procedures

The Town is currently studying the Statement and plans on adoption when required, which will be for the
December 31, 2012 financial statements.

GASB has issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources. The Town adopted the provisions of this Statement during the
year ended December 31, 2011.

GASB has issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections (effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2012), which resolves conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two recent pronouncements; GASB
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and GASB Statement No.
62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB
and AICPA Pronouncements. The Town is currently studying the Statement and plans on adoption when
required, which will be for the December 31, 2013 financial statements.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Governmental funds fund equity, business-type activities net position and Town-wide net position have been
restated as of January 1, 2011, to give effect to the following:

Governmental Business-type
Funds Activities Town-wide
Fund Equity Net Position Net Position
Balance as of January 1, 2011, as reported $ 76,570,558 $ 10,731,601 $ 620,841,276
Add: reclassification of Historic Preservation Reserve monies previously
recorded as a liability as a result of internal study 500,000 - 500,000
Add (deduct): reclassification related to Ponquogue Beach
Improvements from Capital Projects Fund to Beaches and Marinas (250,000) 250,000 (250,000)
Balance as of January 1, 2011, as restated $ 76,820,558 $ 10,981,601 $ 621,091,276
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Town has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the Statement of Net Position through the date of
April 24, 2012, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Based on this
evaluation, the Town has determined the following subsequent events have occurred, which require
disclosure in the financial statements:

In March 2012, the Town was authorized by the Town Board to purchase the Town of East Hampton's
share (50%) of the Poxabogue Golf Course at a total cost not to exceed $2,200,000, plus closing costs.
The source of funding has not yet been determined, however, once the sale is final, the Town will no
longer share an undivided interest with the Town of East Hampton.

In April 2012, the Town issued $6,105,000 of bond anticipation notes at an interest rate of 0.5% maturing
on April 18, 2013.
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SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 1
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Variance
Favorable
Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Revised Year-end To Revised
Budget Budget Actual Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 23,747,787 $ 22,983,270 $ 22,983,270 3 -
Other real property tax items 165,000 165,000 201,668 36,668
Non-property tax items 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,424,315 174,315
Special assessments - - 51,209 51,209
Departmental income 733,000 733,000 671,802 (61,198)
Intergovernmental charges 120,687 120,524 119,989 (535)
Use of money and property 101,000 101,000 34,163 (66,837)
Licenses and permits 235,000 235,000 283,346 48,346
Fines and forfeitures 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,784,553 (15,447)
Sale of property and compensation for loss - 840 31,969 31,129
Miscellaneous local sources 547,659 550,584 648,654 98,070
State aid 5,817,000 5,831,563 6,249,172 417,609
Federal aid 720,000 720,000 341,735 (378,265)
Total revenues 35,237,133 34,490,781 34,825,845 335,064
EXPENDITURES
General governmental support 13,955,804 13,157,269 12,088,942 § 22,570 1,045,757
Public safety 2,159,171 2,248,817 2,117,152 - 131,665
Economic assistance and opportunity 2,133,333 2,179,021 2,692,197 - (513,176)
Culture and recreation 3,854,534 3,853,721 3,594,108 - 259,613
Home and community services 668,811 651,406 581,913 - 69,493
Employee benefits 7,171,422 8,243,277 7,671,505 - 571,772
Debt service -
Principal 3,983,800 3,959,635 4,036,956 - (77,321)
Interest 1,338,971 1,110,984 1,043,894 - 67,090
Total expenditures 35,265,846 35,404,130 33,826,667 22,570 1,554,893
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (28,713) (913,349) 999,178 (22,570) 1,889,957
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Premium on debt issuance - - 105,849 - 105,849
“Transfers-in 178;713~—594;595—1;105;804 = 511,209
Transfers out (150,000) (4,042,382) (3,267,382) - 775,000
Appropriated reserves - 4,361,136 - - (4,361,136)
Total other financing sources (uses) 28,713 913,349 (2,055,729) - (2,969,078)
Changes in fund balance - - (1,056,551) $ (22,570) $ (1,079,121)
Fund balance, beginning of year 14,005,683 14,005,683 14,005,683
Fund balance, end of year $ 14005683 $ 14,005683 $ 12,949,132

The accompanying notes to financial statements should be
read in conjunction with this schedule.
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SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 2
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - POLICE DISTRICT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Variance
Favorable
Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Revised Year-end To Revised
Budget Budget Actual Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 18,814,396 $ 18,814,396 $ 18,814,396 $ -
Other real property tax items 120,000 120,000 145,486 25,486
Departmental income 131,250 131,250 395,909 264,659
Use of money and property 25,000 25,000 9,907 (15,093)
Licenses and permits 32,219 33,191 62,999 29,808
Sale of property and compensation for loss 5,000 5,000 2,027 (2,973)
Miscellaneous local sources 84,000 88,000 135,900 47,900
State aid 1,978,633 2,263,953 2,286,408 22,455
Federal aid 62,464 85,371 91,667 6,296
Total revenues 21,252 962 21,566,161 21,944,699 378,538
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 14,145,480 14,439,455 14,104,920 $ 1,389 333,146
Employee benefits 7,085,299 6,960,911 6,822,336 - 138,575
Debt service -
Principal 18,700 18,700 18,700 - -
Interest 3,483 3,483 3,483 - -
Total expenditures 21,252 962 21,422,549 20,949,439 1,389 471,721
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - 143,612 995,260 (1,389) 850,259
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Premium on debt issuance - - 12,346 - 12,346
Appropriated reserves - (143,612) - - 143,612
Total other financing sources (uses) - (143,612) 12,346 - 155,958
Changes in fund balance - - 1,007,606 $ (1,389) $ 1,006,217
Fund balance, beginning of year 234,831 234,831 234,831
Fund balance; end of year $ 234,831 % 234,831 % 1,242,437

The accompanying notes to financial statements should be
read in conjunction with this schedule.
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REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Departmental income
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous local sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Home and community services
Employee benefits
Debt service -
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Premium on debt issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out
Appropriated reserves

Total other financing sources (uses)
Changes in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 3
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - TOWN OUTSIDE VILLAGE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Variance
Favorable
Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Revised Year-end To Revised
Budget Budget Actual Encumbrances Budget
$ 907561 $ 907561 $ 907,561 $ -
10,000 10,000 9,237 (763)
2,757,328 2,757,322 3,073,386 316,064
534,573 - - -
7,500 7,500 4,692 (2,808)
- - 1,291 1,291
4,216,962 3,682,383 3,996,167 313,784
3,727 86,937 86,937 % - -
3,168,385 3,145,710 3,062,910 - 82,800
1,460,277 1,484,694 1,410,494 - 74,200
- 2,388 2,388 - -
4,632,389 4,719,729 4,562,729 - 157,000
(415,427) (1,037,346) (566,562) - 470,784
- - 9,497 - 9,497
(534,573) 7,393 7,393 - -
(129,963) (129,963) (129,963) - -
1,079,963 1,159,916 - - (1,159,916)
415,427 1,037,346 (113,073) - (1,150,419)
- - (679,635) § - $ (679,635)
1,218,538 1,218,538 1,218,538
$ 1,218,538 ¢ 1,218,538° % 538,903

"Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes to financial statements should be
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REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Miscellaneous local sources
State aid
Federal aid

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Transportation
Employee benefits
Debt service -
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Premium on debt issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out
Appropriated reserves

Total other financing sources

Changes in fund balance

SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 4
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HIGHWAY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Variance
Favorable
Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Revised To Revised
Budget Budget Actual Encumbrances Budget
$ 10,770,010 $ 10,770,010 $ 10,770,010 $ -
60,000 60,000 82,298 22,298
754,285 754,285 754,285 -
20,000 20,000 9,529 (10,471)
- - 876 876
160,000 165,200 281,821 116,621
650,000 659,266 684,530 25,264
- 46,367 9,562 (36,805)
12,414,295 12,475,128 12,592,911 117,783
6,870,033 7,133,201 6,648,842 § 484,359
2,882,284 2,952,572 2,771,944 180,628
1,916,900 1,957,389 1,957,389 -
745,078 725,014 725,014 -
12,414,295 12,768,176 12,103,189 664,987
- (293,048) 489,722 782,770
- - 243,552 243,552
- 8,263 8,263 -
- (414,179) (414,179) -
- 698,964 - (698,964)
- 293,048 (162,364) (455,412)
- - 327,358  § $ 327,358
1,482,751 1,482,751 1,482,751

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$ 1,482,751  § 1,482,751 $ 1,810,109

The accompanying notes to financial statements should be
read in conjunction with this schedule.
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SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 6
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM
DECEMBER 31, 2011
Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corp:
Year Annual
Ended Required Actual Percentage
Dec. 31 Contribution Contribution Contributed
2010 $ 58,535 $ 57,192 97.71%
Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp:
Year Annual
Ended Required Actual Percentage
Dec. 31 Contribution Contribution Contributed
2010 $ 63,238 $ 71,750 113.46%
Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corp:
Year Annual
Ended Required Actual Percentage
Dec. 31 Contribution Contribution Contributed
2010 $ 59,169 $ 58,325 98.57%
Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp:
Year Annual
Ended Required Actual Percentage
Dec. 31 Contribution Contribution Contributed
2010 $ 41,019 $ 42,723 104.15%

The accompanying notes to financial statements should
be read in conjunction with this schedule.
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SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 7
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM
DECEMBER 31, 2011
Westhampton War Memorial Ambulance Corp:
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Accrued Liability (Overfunded) % of
Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Dec. 31 of Assets Age Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payrol Payroll
(a) (b (b-a) (alb) {c) [(b-a)/c]
2010 $ 333,233 §$ 481,804 § 148,571 69.16% N/A* N/A*
Flanders Northampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp:
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Accrued Liability (Overfunded) % of
Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Dec. 31 of Assets Age Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(a) (b) (b-a) (arb) {c) [(b-a)/c]
2010 $ 372,924 § 468,900 $ 95,976 79.53% N/A* N/A*
Hampton Bays Volunteer Ambulance Corp:
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Accrued Liability (Overfunded) % of
Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Dec. 31 of Assets Age Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(@ (b) (b-a) (alb) (©) [(b-a)/c]
2010 $ 361,607 § 391,923 § 30,316 92.26% N/A* N/A*
Southampton Volunteer Ambulance Corp:
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Accrued Liability (Overfunded) % of
Date Actuarial Value (AAL) - Entry Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Dec. 31 of Assets Age Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payrolt Payroll
(@ (b) (b-a) (a/b) {©) [(b-a)/c]
2010 $ 301,044 § 333,679 $ 32,635 90.22% N/A* N/A*

* There is no covered payroll due to the fact that this is a volunteer ambulance corp.

Benefits are determined based off service credits earned. The amount of the monthly retirement
income payable to a volunteer ambulance worker eligible for normal retirement benefits is equal

to $20 multiplied by the total years of service, which is not to exceed 40 years.

** Prior to 2007 all plans were defined contribution plans.

The accompanying notes to financial statements should

be read in conjunction with this schedule.
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SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 8
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR RETIREE HEALTH PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
01/01/09 $ - $ 145,399,000 $ 145,399,000 0% $ 37,330,904 389.49%
01/01/10 - 149,490,000 149,490,000 0% 38,278,198 390.54%
01/01/11 - 149,490,000 149,490,000 0% 37,513,001 398.50%

The accompanying notes to financial statements should be
read in conjunction with this schedule.
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SUPPLEMENTAL

SCHEDULE 9
TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Federal Grantor/ Federal Total
Pass - Through Grantor/ CFDA Federal
Program Title/Cluster Title Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program 14.871 $ 4,071,571
Passed - through Suffolk County
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 78,064
4,149,635
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed - through Office of the New York State Comptroller
Federal Surplus Property Transfer Program 16.578 22,907
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 700
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 5,925
29,532
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed - through Office of the New York State Comptroller
Highway Planning and Construction (FEMA) 20.205 9,562
Environmental Protection Agency
National Estuary Program 66.456 6,250
U.S. Department of Energy
State Energy Program 81.042 126,600
U.S. Department of Health Services
Passed - through Suffolk County Administration on Aging
Special Programs for the Aging - Title 1lI, Part B Grants for Supportive
Services and Senior Centers 93.052 7,470
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 16,879
Highway Safety Cluster
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed - through Office of the New York State Comptroller
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 14,376
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants | 20.601 33,707
48,083
Aging Cluster
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed - through Suffolk County Administration on Aging
Special Programs for the Aging - Title lli, Part C - Nutrition Services 93.045 282,153
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 52,112
334,265

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
awards programs administered by the Town of Southampton (the “Town"), an entity as defined in Note 1
to the Town'’s financial statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through government agencies, are inciuded on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards.

Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting varies by federal program consistent with the underlying regulations pertaining to
each program. ‘

The amounts reported as federal expenditures generally were obtained from appropriate federal financial
reports for the applicable program and periods. The amounts reported in these federal financial reports
are prepared from records maintained for each program. These records are periodically reconciled to the
general ledger which is the source of the financial statements.

Indirect Costs

Indirect costs are included in the reported expenditures to the extent they are included in the federal
financial reports used as the source for the data presented.

Matching Costs

Matching costs (i.e. the Town's share of certain program costs) are not included in the reported
expenditures.

Major Program Determination

The Town has determined that all federal programs with expenditures of $300,000 or more are Type A
Programs for purposes of determining Major Programs.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Supervisor and Town Board of
The Town of Southampton:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of Southampton (the “Town”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011,
which collectively comprise the Town of Southampton’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated April 24, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Southampton’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Southampton’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Southampton’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
confracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Town of Southampton, in a separate letter
dated April 24, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Supervisor, Audit Committee, Town
Board, others within the Town, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Melville, New York %W/ S‘M’M

April 24, 2012
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT
AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Supervisor and Town Board of
the Town of Southampton:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of Southampton with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are
applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2011. The Town of Southampton’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of audit resulis section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Town of Southampton’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town of Southampton’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Southampton’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Town of Southampton’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town of Southampton complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Town of Southampton is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Southampton’s internal contro! over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Cirucular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Southampton’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Town of Southampton in a separate letter
dated April 24, 2012,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Supervisor, Audit Committee, Town

Board, others within the Town and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Melville, New York . —
April 24, 2012 W fwu%/ LL
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

The auditor's report expresses an ungualified opinion on the financial statements.

No deficiencies or material weaknesses were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.

No instances of noncompliance were disclosed during the audit.

No deficiencies or material weaknesses were disclosed during the audit of the major federal award

programs.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the Town of

Southampton expresses an unqualified opinion.

6. No audit findings relative to the major federal award programs that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133, were disclosed during the audit.

7. The program tested as a major program included:

PN =

il

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development -
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.
9. Auditee was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None reported.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None reported.
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TOWN OF SOUTHAMPTON
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Findings - Financial Statement Audit

07-03 Recommendation - It was recommended that the Town should establish policies to ensure that interfund
loans are repaid by the close of the year in which the advances were made.

Status - We noted this recommendation is in the process of being implemented.

Findings And Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit

None reported.
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